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NOTICE CONVENING THE TWENTY NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty Ninth Annual General Meeting of Elnet Technologies 
Limited will be held on Monday, the 28th day of September, 2020 at 12.30 P.M via Video 
Conferencing (“VC”/Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”),to transact the following business

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year 
ended 31st March, 2020 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Statutory 
Auditors thereon.

2.	 To declare a dividend of Rs. 1.20 per equity Share for the Financial Year ended 31st 
March, 2020.

3.	 To appoint a director in place of Mr. J. Ravi (DIN:00042953) who retires by rotation and 
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

4.	 To appoint a director in place of Mr. C. Ramachandran (DIN:00050893) who retires by 
rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5.	 APPOINTMENT OF MR. P.R NITHIYANANDAN.,(DIN:07721702) AS NON-EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR.

	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152, 160, 161 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (”Act”) and the Rules made there 
under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments thereof for the time 
being in force), and pursuant to recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Articles of Association of the Company Mr. P.R Nithiyanandan  
(DIN: 07721702) who was appointed as Non-Executive Additional Director of the Company 
by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 18th March, 2020 and who holds office 
up to the date of this 29th Annual General Meeting be and is hereby appointed as a Non-
Executive Director of the Company and liable to retire by rotation.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company and/or the Company 
Secretary of the company be and are hereby severally authorised to do all acts and take 
all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution 
and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto”.

6.	 INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 13 and 61 and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder (including 
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any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and 
the Articles of Association of the Company, consent of the members be and is hereby 
accorded to increase the Authorised Share Capital of the Company from the existing 
capital of Rs. 5,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crore only) divided into 50,00,000 (Fifty Lakh 
only) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to Rs. 100,00,00,000/- (One 
hundred crore only) divided into 10,00,00,000 (Ten Crores) equity shares of Rs.10/- 
(Rupees Ten only) each by creation of additional 9,50,00,000 (Nine crore fifty lakhs) 
equity shares of ₹ 10/- (Rupees Ten only).

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT athe Board of Directors of the Company and/or the 
Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby severally authorised to execute, 
sign, verify, file all necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and to do all other 
deeds, things and acts that are necessary or incidental to give effect to this resolution.”

7.	 ALTERATION OF CAPITAL CLAUSE OF MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 13 and 61 and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and 
the Articles of Association of the Company, and consequent upon the increase in the 
Authorised Share Capital of the Company, the existing Clause V of the Memorandum of 
Association of the Company be and is hereby substituted by the new Clause V:
V.	 The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 100,00,00,000/- (One hundred 

crore only) divided into 10,00,00,000 (Ten Crores) equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees 
Ten only) with power to increase and reduce or consolidate or sub-divide the Capital 
of the Company and to divide the shares in the Capital for the time being into several 
classes and to attach thereto respectively such preferential, deferred, qualified or 
special rights, privileges or conditions as may be determined by or in accordance 
with the Articles of Association of the Company and to verify, modify or abrogate any 
such rights, privileges or conditions in such manner as may be permitted by the Act 
or provided by the Articles of Association of the Company.”

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company and/or the Company 
Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorised severally to execute, sign, verify, 
file all necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and to do all other deeds, things 
and acts that are necessary or incidental to give effect to this resolution.”

8.	 ADOPTION OF SET OF NEW ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION AS PER THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and other relevant provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules framed thereunder, the existing 
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Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby replaced and substituted by the 
new set of Articles of Association, drawn as per the Companies Act, 2013, and that the 
Regulations contained in the new set of Articles be and are hereby approved and adopted 
as the Articles of Association of the Company.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company and/or the 
Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorised severally to execute, 
sign, verify, file all necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and to do all other 
deeds, things and acts that are necessary or incidental to give effect to this resolution.”

9.	 INCREASE IN THE BORROWING POWERS OF THE COMPANY UNDER SECTION 
180(1)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time, and in supersession of all 
earlier resolution passed in this regard,the consent of the members of the Company be 
and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred 
to as the “Board” which term shall include any committee thereof for the time being 
exercising the powers conferred on the Board by this Resolution), to borrow from time to 
time, any sum or sums of monies, which together with the monies already borrowed by 
the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained or to be obtained from the Company’s 
bankers in the ordinary course of business), may exceed the aggregate of the paid-up 
capital of the Company and its free reserves, that is to say, reserves not set apart for any 
specific purpose, provided that the total outstanding principal amount so borrowed shall 
not at any time exceed the limit of Rs. 500 Crores (Both funded and non-funded) at any 
one point of time.”

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of the Company (hereinafter referred to as 
the “Board”, which term shall include any Committee constituted by the Board or any 
person(s) authorized by the Board to exercise the powers conferred on the Board by this 
Resolution) be and is hereby authorised to take all such actions as may be necessary, 
desirable or expedient and to do all such necessary acts, deeds and things that may be 
incidental or pertinent to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

10.	 APPROVAL UNDER SECTION 180(1)(a) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier resolution passed authorizing the 
Board to mortgage/create charge on the assets of the Company and pursuant to the 
provisions of Section180(1)(a) and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, and the Rules made thereunder, including any statutory modification(s) thereto or 
reenactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, and in accordance with the Articles of 
Association of the Company, and subject to such other approvals, consents, sanctions 
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and permissions, as may be necessary, consent of the members of the Company be 
and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to pledge, mortgage, 
hypothecate and/or charge all or any part of the moveable or immovable properties of the 
Company and the whole or part of the undertaking of the Company of every nature and 
kind whatsoever and/or creating a floating charge in all or any movable or immovable 
properties of the Company and the whole of the undertaking of the Company to or in 
favour of banks, financial institutions, investors and any other lenders or debenture 
trustees to secure the amount borrowed by the Company or any third party from time to 
time for the due payment of the principal and/or together with interest, charges, costs, 
expenses and all other monies payable by the Company or any third party in respect of 
such borrowings provided that the aggregate indebtedness secured by the assets of the 
Company does not exceed Rs. 500 Crores (Rupees Five hundred crores) at any point of 
time.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT athe Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to file necessary returns/ forms with the Registrar of Companies and to do all 
such acts, deeds and things as may be considered necessary, incidental and ancillary in 
order to give effect to this Resolution.”

		  By order of the Board of Directors 
For Elnet Technologies Limited

Place	 :	 Chennai	 T. Joswa Johnson 
Date	 :	 17th Aug, 2020	 Company Secretary

Registered Office: 
Elnet Software City, 
TS 140, Block No.2 & 9, 
Rajiv Gandhi Salai, Taramani, 
Chennai - 600 113 
Phone: +91-44-2254 1793, Fax: +91-44-2254 1955 
e-mail:elnetcity@gmail.com 
Website: www.elnettechnologies.com 
CIN:L72300TN1990PLC019459
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IMPORTANT NOTES:

1.	 The details pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2), 
in respect of Director seeking re-appointment and the Explanatory Statement in respect 
of Special Businesses are annexed hereto.

2.	 The Register of Members will remain closed from Tuesday, 22nd Sep, 2020 to 
Monday, 28th Sep, 2020 (both days inclusive). Monday, 21st Sep, 2020 shall be the 
cut-off date as on which the right of voting of the Members shall be reckoned and 
a person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for 
information purposes only.

3.	 Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are requested to register 
the same with their Depository Participants in case the shares are held by them in 
dematerialized form and with the Company in case the shares are held by them in 
physical form.

4.	 As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, securities of listed companies can be 
transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from April 01, 2019, except in case of 
request received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this, Members 
holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to 
dematerialized form.

5.	 Pursuant to section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount of dividend remaining 
unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to the 
unpaid dividend account is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
ProtectionFund (IEPF). Accordingly, the Company would be transferring the seven years’ 
unpaid/unclaimed Dividend with respect to the dividend declared in the Financial Year 
2012-13 within 30 days from the cut-off date of 22nd July, 2020. As per the provisions, the 
3 months’ prior intimation to the eligible shareholders via Newspapers advertisement has 
given and the same had been updated in website of the Company www.elnettechnologies.
com. 

	 As on March 31, 2020, following amount of dividends remained unclaimed

Financial year for 
which dividend 

declared

Unpaid/ Unclaimed 
Dividend Amount As 
on 31.03.2020 (In `)

Date of Declaration of 
Dividend

7 Years from the date 
of transfer to Unpaid 

Dividend Account

2012-13 233650.20 20.06.2013 22.07.2020

2013-14 244673.80 17.07.2014 20.08.2021

2014-15 227671.00 08.07.2015 10.08.2022

2015-16 324652.50 15.06.2016 18.07.2023
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2016-17 274075.40 06.07.2017 08.08.2024

2017-18 232649.00 09.08.2018 07.09.2025

2018-19 215910.00 09.08.2019 11.09.2026

TOTAL 1753281.90

6.	 CDSL E-VOTING SYSTEM – FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING AGM
i.	 As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to Covid-19 global pandemic, the 

general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued 
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 
2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 
05, 2020. The ensuing AGM will thus be held through video conferencing (VC) or 
other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in 
the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.

ii.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 
44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015, 
and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020, the 
Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the 
business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has engaged 
with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through 
electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes 
by a Member using remote e-Voting as well as the e-Voting system during the AGM 
will be provided by CDSL.

iii.	 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 30 minutes before and 
after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the 
procedure mentioned in the Notice.

iv.	 The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available 
to atleast 1000 Members on first come first served basis. This will not include 
large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, 
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of 
the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Auditors, etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without 
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

v.	 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted 
for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 
2013.
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vi.	 Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint 
proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. 
However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a 
State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes 
through e-voting.

vii.	 In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 
2020, the Notice calling the AGM and the Annual Report for the financial year 2019-
20 has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.elnettechnologies.
com. The Notice can also be accessed on the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. 
BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the 
website of CDSL (Agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-Voting 
system during the AGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com.

viii.	 The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated 
April 08, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular 
No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.

7.	 INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

i.	 The voting period begins on Thursday, 24th Sep, 2020 at 9.00 am and ends 
on Sunday, 27th Sep, 2020 at 5.00 pm. During this period shareholders’ of the 
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, 
as on the cut-off date (record date) of Monday, 21st Sep, 2020 may cast their 
vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 
thereafter.

ii.	 The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

iii.	 Click on “Shareholders” module.

iv.	 Now enter your User ID 

	 For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

	 For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

	 Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered 
with the Company.

v.	 Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
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vi.	 If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com 
and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to 
be used. 

vii.	 If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax 

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as 
physical shareholders)
•	 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/

Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 
number sent by the Company or Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent (Contact;044-40020728; kandhimathi@cameoindia.com)

Dividend 
Bank 

Details  
OR  

Date of 
Birth (DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy 
format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company records 
in order to login.
•	 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company 

please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank 
details field as mentioned in instruction (iv).

viii.	 After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

ix.	 Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company 
selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login 
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used 
by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they 
are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. 
It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 
take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

x.	 For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for 
e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

xi.	 Click on the EVSN of <ELNET TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED> on which you choose to 
vote.

xii.	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the 
same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The 
option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you 
dissent to the Resolution.
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xiii.	 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution 
details.

xiv.	 After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, 
else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

xv.	 Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
your vote.

xvi.	 You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option 
on the Voting page.

xvii.	If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID 
and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as 
prompted by the system.

xviii.	Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app “m-Voting”. The 
m-Voting app can be downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions 
as prompted by the mobile app while Remote Voting on your mobile.

8.	 PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT 
REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS 
FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE: 

i.	 For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name 
of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of 
Aadhaar Card) by email to kandhimathi@cameoindia.com (RTA).

ii.	 For Demat shareholders -, Please provide Demat account details (CDSL-
16 digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-16 digit DPID + CLID), Name, client master 
or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy 
of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card) to  
kandhimathi@cameoindia.com (RTA). 

9.	 INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/
OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

i.	 Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM 
through the CDSL e-Voting system. 

	 Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under 
shareholders/members login by using the remote e-voting credentials. 

	 The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/members login where the 
EVSN of Company will be displayed.
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ii.	 Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better 
experience.

iii.	 Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good 
speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

iv.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through 
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to 
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable 
Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

v.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the  
meeting may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance  
atleast 6 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account  
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at elnetcity@gmailcom (Company); 
kandhimathi@cameoindia.com (RTA).

vi.	 Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be 
allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting. The Company 
reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availablity of 
time during the AGM.

10.	 INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS 
UNDER:

i.	 The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions 
mentioned above for Remote e-voting.

ii.	 Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility 
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system 
available during the AGM.

iii.	 If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the 
AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/
OAVM facility , then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid 
as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders 
attending the meeting.

iv.	 Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 
AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.
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11.	 NOTE FOR NON – INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS AND CUSTODIANS
i.	 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and 

Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves 
in the “Corporates” module.

ii.	 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity 
should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

iii.	 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin 
login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for 
which they wish to vote on.

iv.	 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

v.	 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they 
have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in 
the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

vi.	 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board 
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the 
duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the 
Company at the email address viz; elnetcity@gmail.com (designated email address 
by company) , if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the 
CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

vii.	 In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the 
Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.
evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com or call 1800225533.

	 All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed 
to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A 
Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower 
Parel (East), Mumbai – 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
call 1800225533 or +91-22-23058542 or +91-22-23058543 or +91-22-23058738.

22.	 The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid 
up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date (record date) of 
Monday, 21st September, 2020.

23.	 Dividend on equity shares, if declared at the Meeting, will be credited/dispatched 
within the timeline specefied in the respective rules to those members whose name 
appears in the Company Register of Members as on cut-off date Monday, 21st day 
of September, 2020.

24.	 The Board of Directors has appointed M/s. BP & Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretaries, New No.74 (old No.62) Akshaya Flats, 3rd Floor, 12th Avenue, Ashok Nagar, 
Chennai- 83 as the Scrutinizer (entity id:83104) for conducting the e-voting process in a 
fair and transparent manner. 
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25.	 After the conclusion of the Meeting, the Scrutinizer shall unblock the votes in the presence 
of at least 2 (two) witnesses who is not in the employment of the Company and make a 
Scrutinizer’s Report on the votes cast in favour or against the resolutions.

26.	 The Results shall be declared by the Chairman or any person authorized by him in 
this regard on or before 30th September, 2020. The result along with the Scrutinizer’s 
report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.elnettechnologies.com and on the 
website of CDSL i.e., www.evotingindia.com and Stock Exchange i.e., www.bseindia.com

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Elnet Technologies Limited

Place	 :	 Chennai	 T. Joswa Johnson 
Date	 :	 17th August, 2020	 Company Secretary

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF  
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

Annexure to the Notice of 29th Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on Monday,  
the 28th day of September, 2020 at 12.30 P.M through VC/OAVM facility.

Item No.5

Pursuant to recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Articles 
of Association of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held 
on 18th March, 2020 approved the appointment of Mr. P. R Nithiyanandan as Non-Executive 
Additional Director of the Company

Mr. P. R Nithiyanandan is eligible to hold the office up to the date of this 29th Annual General 
Meeting. An ordinary resolution seeking the approval of shareholders is being sought in this 
29th Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and / or their relatives are, in 
anyway,concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution except 
the appointee themselves.

ITEM NO. 6 – INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

As the Company is envisaging business expansion and plans to improve business further 
fuelling the growth of the Company, the company may need additional funds. The Company 
may look into the option of raising these additional funds by way of issuance of shares of the 
Company. Prior to any issue of securities, the Company will need to increase the Authorised 
Share Capital of the Company. 
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It is proposed to increase the authorised share capital from Rs. 5,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five 
Crore only) divided into 50,00,000 (Fifty Lakh only) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) 
each to Rs. 100,00,00,000/- (One hundred crore only) divided into 10,00,00,000 (Ten Crores) 
equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each by creation of additional 9,50,00,000/- (Nine 
crore fifty lakhs) equity shares of ₹ 10/- (Rupees Ten only). The proposal has been approved 
by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 17th Aug, 2020.

The Board recommends the proposal set forth in item no. 6 of the Notice (Ordinary Resolution) 
for consideration and approval of the shareholders.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the company and their relatives are 
concerned or interested in this item of business.

ITEM NO. 7- ALTERATION OF CAPITAL CLAUSE OF MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

Consequent upon the increase in Authorized Capital, the company is required to amend the 
Capital clause of the Memorandum of Association by approval of the Shareholders of the 
Company. The amended clause is specified in the resolution mentioned at item no. 7.

The Board recommends the proposal set forth in item no. 7 of the Notice (Special Resolution) 
for consideration and approval of the shareholders.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the company and their relatives are 
concerned or interested in this item of business.

ITEM NO. 8 – ADOPTION OF SET OF NEW ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION AS PER THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The existing Articles of Association were prepared in consonance with the Companies 
Act 1956, which are no longer in full conformity with the Companies Act, 2013 (’New 
Act’). With the coming into force of the New Act, it is considered expedient to replace 
the existing set of Articles in entirety by a new set of Articles, primarily based on 
Table- F set out under the Companies Act, 2013. The proposed amended Articles of 
Association as well as the existing Articles of Association is available on the weblink  
http://www.elnettechnologies.com/Document/Draft-%20Altered%20MOA%20and%20adopted%20AOA.pdf

The board affirmed the necessity of adopting a new set of Articles of Association as per the 
Companies Act, 2013 in its meeting held on 17th Aug, 2020.

The Board recommends the proposal set forth in item no. 8 of the Notice (Special Resolution) 
for consideration and approval of the shareholders.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the company and their relatives are 
concerned or interested in this item of business.
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ITEM NO. 9&10 – INCREASE IN THE BORROWING POWERS OF THE COMPANY UNDER 
SECTION 180(1)(C) AND APPROVAL UNDER SECTION 180(1)(A) OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013

In accordance with the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) and 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 
2013,the following powers can be exercised by the Board of Directors with the consent of the 
company by a Special Resolution only: 

•	 To pledge, mortgage, hypothecate and/or charge all or any part of the moveable or 
immovable properties of the Company and the whole or part of the undertaking of the 
Company; 

•	 To borrow money, where the money to be borrowed, together with the money already 
borrowed by the Company will exceed the aggregate of the Company’s paid-up share 
capital and free reserves and securities premium, apart from temporary loans obtained 
from the company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business, except. 

The Board is of the view that the in order to further expand the business activities of the 
Company and for meeting the expenses for capital expenditure, the Company may be further 
required to borrow money, either secured or unsecured, from the banks/financial institutions/
other body corporate, from time to time, and to pledge, mortgage, hypothecateand/or charge 
any or all of the movable and immovable properties of theCompany and/or whole or part of 
the undertaking of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company proposes to increase the limits to borrow money upto 
Rs. 500 Crores (Five hundred crores) and to secure such borrowings by pledging, mortgaging, 
hypothecating the movable or immovable properties of the Company amounting up to  
Rs. 500 Crores (Five hundred crores).

It is, therefore, required to obtain fresh approval of members by Special Resolution under 
Sections 180(1)(a) and 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act,2013, to enable the Board of Directors 
to borrow money in excess of the aggregate of the paid up share capital and free reserves of 
the Company and to create charge on the assets over the Company under the Companies 
Act, 2013.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is 
concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the said resolutions.

The Board recommends the Special Resolutions set out at Item No. 9 & 10 of the Notice for 
approval by the Members.
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Details of Directors seeking Appointment / Re-appointment at the 29th Annual General 
Meeting Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards on General Meeting.

Name of Director Mr. C. Ramachandran IAS (Retd.) Mr. J. Ravi
Date of Birth & Age 15.05.1938 & 82 years 03.10.1954 & 65 years

Nationality Indian Indian

Qualification B.Sc (Hons)., MA B. Tech - Chemical 
Engineerings

Experience and Expertise in 
specific functional areas

Mr. C. Ramachandran IAS (Retd.) 
was served for Government in various 
responsibilities, worked in public sector 
companies and retired as Principal 
Secretary, Industries Dept.,He is 
specialised in the area of Corporate 
Management.

Mr. J. Ravi has 34 years of 
experience in International 
Trading

Date of first appointment to 
the Board

08.08.2003 08.08.2003

Terms of  
Re- appointment

Being longest in office, liable to retire 
by rotation and sought himself of 
reappointment.

Being longest in office liable to 
retire by rotation and sought 
himself of reappointment.

Revised Remuneration 
sought to be paid 

NIL NIL

Remuneration last drawn for 
the FY 2018-19

Rs. 1.54 lacs sitting fees paid for the 
Meetings attended during the financial 
year 2019-20. Other than sitting fees no 
remuneration was paid.

Rs. 0.56 lacs sitting fees paid 
for the Meetings attended during 
the financial year 2019-20. Other 
than sitting fees no remuneration 
was paid.

Shareholding in this company NIL NIL

Relationship Relationship with directors, Manager & 
KMP- NIL

Relationship with directors, 
Manager & KMP- NIL

No of Board Meetings held 
and attended during the year

6/6 6/2

Name(s) of other entities in 
which holding of directorship

Dewa properties limited
IG3 infra limited
The great Indian linen and textile 
infrastructure company private limited
Grand luxe hotels limited

NIL

Chairpersonship/Membership 
in committees of other 
Entities

Audit Committee
IG3 Infra Limited
Stakeholder Relationship Committee
NIL

NIL
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Name of Director Mr. P. R Nithiyanandan
Date of Birth & Age 09-05-1963
Nationality Indian
Qualification B.Com
Experience and Expertise in specific functional 
areas

Procurement and Legal

Date of first appointment to the Board 18-03-2020
Terms of Re- appointment NA
Revised Remuneration sought to be paid NA
Remuneration last drawn for the FY 2019-20 NIL
Shareholding in this company NIL
Relationship Relationship with directors, Manager & KMP- NIL
No of Board Meetings held and attended during the 
year

1/1

Name(s) of other entities in which holding of 
directorship

DCL software limited 
Intwel Technologies limited

Chairpersonship/Membership in committees of 
other Entities

NIL

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Elnet Technologies Limited

Place	 :	 Chennai	 T. Joswa Johnson 
Date	 :	 17th Aug, 2020	 Company Secretary



20

TWENTY NINTH Annual REPORT 2019 - 20

BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members, 

Your Directors have great pleasure in presenting the Twenty Ninth Annual Report together 
with the Audited financial statements of your Company for the Financial Year ended 31st 
March, 2020.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The finiancial performance of your company is stated hereunder:	 (Rs. In Lakhs)

S. 
No. Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

1. Revenue from operations 2403.69 2104.45
2. Other income 508.14 444.24
3. Total revenue 2911.83 2548.69
4. Expenses 1444.72 1382.40
5. Profit before exceptional items and tax 1467.11 1166.29
6. Profit before tax 1467.11 1166.29
7. Tax expense 382.18 325.11
8. Profit for the year 1084.93 841.18
9. Other comprehensive income, net of income tax 0.74 (23.55)
10. Total comprehensive income for the year 1085.67 817.63
11. Earnings per share 27.12 21.03

STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

During the year 2019-20, there was no significant change in the business model of the 
company.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 29th June, 2020 approved to recommend 
a dividend of 12 % i.e Rs. 1.20 per share on the Equity Shares of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2020. The dividend, if approved by the Shareholders will be 
paid within the statutory period to all those equity shareholders whose names appear on the 
Register of Members of the Company as on Monday, 21st Sep, 2020 being the record date.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, your Company has not issued any type of Shares. Hence there 
is no change in the share capital of the company.
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TRANSFERS TO THE INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

Pursuant to section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 
2016 (“The Rules”), all unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred by the 
Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central 
Government, after completion of seven consecutive years from the date of transfer to unpaid 
dividend account. Further, according to the Rules, the shares in respect of which dividend has 
not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to the 
demat account of IEPF Authority.

Transfer of Unpaid/ Unclaimed Dividend Amount/Shares pertaining to the dividend 
declared financial year ended 31st March, 2013 to Investor Education and Protection 
Fund (IEPF)

The due date for transfer of unpaid/unclaimed dividend amount and corresponding shares 
for the dividend declared during the financial year ended 31st March, 2013 is 22nd July, 
2020. In compliance with the provision, during the financial year 2020-2021 the Company had 
sent intimation to the eligible shareholders and advertised in the newspaper seeking action 
from the shareholders who have not claimed their dividends for seven consecutive years or 
more for the dividend declared during the financial year ended 31st March, 2013. Accordingly, 
after the expiry of due date for claiming the unpaid/ unclaimed dividend, the Company has 
transfered such unpaid or unclaimed dividends and also the corresponding shares for the 
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2013 to IEPF authority.

Details of shares/shareholders in respect of which dividend has not been claimed, was also 
updated in the website of the company www.elnettechnologies.com. (Investors/Compliances/
unpaid dividend data/year 2020). 

Members/claimants whose shares, and/or unclaimed dividend, have been transferred to the 
IEPF Demat Account or the Fund, as the case may be, may claim the shares or apply for 
refund of dividend by making an application to the IEPF Authority in Form IEPF-5 (available 
on http://www.iepf.gov.in) along with requisite fee as decided by the IEPF Authority from time 
to time. The Member/claimant can file only one consolidated claim in a Financial Year as per 
the IEPF Rules.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

In compliance with the provisions of Section 134 of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 
34(2)(c) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Cash flow statement for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 forms part of this Annual 
Report.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD & COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors met 06 (Six) times during the financial year ended 31st March, 2020. 
i.e., 27th May, 2019, 09th August, 2019, 20th September, 2019, 12th November, 2019, 13th 
February, 2020 and 18th March, 2020. The gap between the Board meetings was within the 
maximum period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Details regarding attendance of directors at 
the Board Meetings and the particulars of meeting of all Committees held during the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2020 are given in the Corporate Governance report forming part of 
this Annual Report.	

PASSING OF BOARD RESOLUTION BY CIRCULATION

During the financial year 2019-20, there was no resolution passed through circulation.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to section 177(8) of Companies Act 2013, the Company has constituted an Audit 
Committee. The particulars of composition of the Audit Committee, meetings held during the 
year and other particulars have been detailed in the Corporate Governance Report forming 
part of this Annual Report.

DETAILS OF RECOMMENDATIONS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE WHICH WERE NOT 
ACCEPTED BY THE BOARD ALONG WITH REASONS

The Audit Committee generally makes certain recommendations to the Board of Directors 
of the Company during their meetings held to consider any financial results (Unaudited and 
Audited) and such other matters placed before the Audit Committee as per the Companies Act 
2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 from time 
to time. During the year the Board of Directors has considered all the recommendations made 
by the Audit Committee and has accepted and carried on the recommendations suggested 
by the Committee to its satisfaction. Hence there are no recommendations unaccepted by the 
Board of Directors of the Company during the year under review.

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS - APPOINTMENT, CHANGE IN DESIGNATION AND RESIGNATION

APPOINTMENT

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, pursuant to the Articles of Association of 
the Company and reference to the resolution passed at the Meeting of Board of Directors held 
on 7th February, 2019 the change in Designation of Mr. M. Vijayakumar IAS., (DIN: 08128389) 
was approved by the shareholders of the company at their 28th Annual General Meeting held 
on 9th August, 2019 to appoint him as a Chairman and Non - Executive - Director of the 
company.
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During the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, pursuant to the Articles of Association of 
the Company and reference to the resolution passed at the Meeting of Board of Directors held 
on 7th February, 2019 the change in Designation of Mr. R. Madhavan (DIN: 02345801) was 
approved by the shareholders of the company at their 28th Annual General Meeting held on 
9th August, 2019 to appoint him as Non-Executive Director of the company.
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, pursuant to the Articles of Association of 
the Company and reference to the resolution passed at the Meeting of Board of Directors 
held on 7th February, 2019 the change in Designation of Mr. N. Srivathsa Desikan  
(DIN: 08205725), was approved by the shareholders of the company at their 28th Annual 
General Meeting held on 9th August, 2019 to appoint him as Non-Executive - Director of the 
company.
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 Mr. P.R Nithiyanandan (DIN: 07721702) 
was appointed as Non-Executive Additional Director with effect from 18th March, 2020 
at the Meeting of Board of Directors held on 18th March, 2020 subject to the approval of 
shareholders of the Company. The said appointment is placed for approval of Shareholders in 
this 29th Annual General Meeting.

RE-APPOINTMENT
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, Mr. G. Chellakrishna was re-appointed as 
Independent Director with effect from 23rd April, 2019 for the second term as per section 149, 
150, 152 read with schedule-IV and Section 161(1) read with Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions, sections, rules of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The approval of shareholders was obtained at the 28th Annual General 
Meeting held on 9th August, 2019.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, Mr. R. Ganapathi, Mr. H. Karthik Seshadri, 
Mr. G. Senraya Perumal and Mr. K. Kasim IPS (Retd) were re-appointed as Independent 
Director with effect from 30th July, 2019 for the second term as per section 149, 150, 152 read 
with schedule-IV and Section 161(1) read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions, sections, rules of the Companies Act, 
2013. The approval of shareholders was obtained at the 28th Annual General Meeting held 
on 9th August, 2019.

Mr. A.P Radhakrishnan (DIN: 03642690) was appointed as Non Executive - Independent 
Director with effect from 2nd March, 2019. The approval of shareholders was obtained at the 
28thAnnual General Meeting held on 9th August, 2019.

RESIGNATION

Mr. R. Madhavan (DIN: 02345801) resigned from the Board of the Company with effect from 
24th Feb, 2020. The Board places its sincere gratitude for the services and support rendered 
by the said Director during his tenure on the Board.
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RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

Pursuant to Section 152(6)(c) of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. J. Ravi (DIN:00042953) and Mr. 
C. Ramachandran (DIN: 00050893) retired by rotation at the 28th Annual General Meeting of 
the Company held on 09th August. 2019 and being eligible were re-appointed.

CHANGE IN KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 there were no changes in Key Managerial 
personnel in the Company. 

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual return 
for the FY ended 31st March, 2020 as per provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 
can be viewed via web link http://www.elnettechnologies.com/Document/Extract%20of%20
Annual%20Return%202019-20.pdf. Further, the extract of the Annual Return for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2020 is also been attached as ANNEXURE- III which is forming part 
of this Report.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION
The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors who are occupying 
the Board as on the end of financial year 2019-20 confirming that they continue to meet the 
criteria of Independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 25 & 16 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and amendments made under thereto.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 read with schedule-V thereof, the report on Corporate Governance and also 
the certificate of Practicing Company Secretaries regarding compliance with the conditions 
of Corporate Governance has been furnished in the Annual Report as ANNEXURE-VI and 
forms part of the Annual Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
Pursuant to Regulation 34(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 read with schedule-V thereof, the Management Discussion and Analysis 
report has been annexed to the Boards Report as ANNEXURE-V and forms a part of the 
Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT
The Company has framed a Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and Senior Management 
personnel of the Company. The Code of Conduct is available on the Company’s website. All 
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the Board of directors and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the 
Code of conduct as on 31st March, 2020.

As required under Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V (D) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 a declaration from Mrs. Unnamalai Thiagarajan, 
Managing director to this effect is annexed to the report on corporate governance which forms 
part of this Annual Report.

LISTING OF SHARES

The equity shares of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange viz., BSE Limited (BSE). 
The Company has paid the applicable listing fees to the Stock Exchanges within the stipulated 
time.

DEMATERIALISATION OF EQUITY SHARES 

As on 31st March, 2020 38,61,235 numbers of equity shares are held in Dematerialized 
form, which constitutes 96.31% of total shareholding. The Company urges its shareholders to 
dematerialize the remaining physical shares also at the earliest.

ACCEPTANCE OF FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company neither accepted any deposits nor there were any 
amounts outstanding at the beginning or end of the year which were classified as ‘Deposits’ 
in terms of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposit) Rules, 2014 and hence, the requirement for furnishing of details of deposits which 
are not in compliance with the Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Sections 134(3) (c) and 134(5) of the Act, in relation to the 
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020, the Board 
of Directors hereby confirms that:

a)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have 
been followed along with proper explanations relating to material departures wherever 
applicable.

b)	 the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of your Company as at 31st March, 2020 and of the profit 
of your Company for the year ended on that date.

c)	 the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 
assets of your Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.
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d)	 the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis

e)	 the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by your Company 
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively and

f)	 the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 
all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

In compliance with the requirements of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with The Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as 
amended, the Board of Directors have framed a policy on CSR as recommended by the CSR 
committee duly constituted and the said policy is available on the Company’s website www.
elnettechnologies.com. The composition and terms of reference of the CSR Committee is 
detailed in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report.

The disclosure on Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives during the financial year has 
been provided in ANNEXURE-IV which forms part of this Annual Report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, M/s. MSKA and Associates, Chartered 
Accountants, Chennai, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of your Company in the 26th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company for a term of 5 years till the conclusion of 31st 
Annual General Meeting.	

The Annual Accounts of the Company including its Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and 
Loss and Cash Flow Statement including the Notes and Schedules to the Accounts have 
been audited by M/s. MSKA Associates, Chartered Accountants, Chennai.

The Independent Auditors Report given by the Auditors on the financial statements of the 
Company is forming part of the Annual Report. There has been no qualification, reservation, 
adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their Report which requires any 
explanation/ comments by the Board. 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of 
Directors had appointed M/s. BP & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Chennai as 
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for conducting the Secretarial Audit for the financial 
year 2019-20. The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year 2019-20 does not contain 
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any adverse remark, qualification or reservation or disclaimer which requires any explanation/ 
comments by the Board. The Secretarial Audit Report is forming part of this Annual Report.

INTERNAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 13 of The Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions (including any amendment thereto) 
if any of the Companies Act 2013 M/s. Ajay Kumar and Associates, Chartered Accountants, 
Chennai was appointed as the Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year  
2019-20.

The audit conducted by the Internal Auditors is based on an internal audit plan, which is 
reviewed each quarter in consultation with the Audit Committee. These audits are based on 
risk based methodology and inter alia involve the review of internal controls and governance 
processes, adherence to management policies and review of statutory compliances. The 
Internal Auditors share their findings on an ongoing basis during the financial year for corrective 
action. The Audit Committee oversees the work of Internal Auditors.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL 
MEETINGS	

During the Financial Year 2019-20, your Company has complied with applicable Secretarial 
Standards, namely SS-1 & SS-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES	

The information as required under the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and read with rule 5(1), 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are set out in ANNEXURE - I attached herewith which 
forms part of this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY/TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION/FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A.	 Conservation of Energy:

Steps taken or impact on conservation of 
energy

The operations of the Company 
are not energy-intensive. However, 
wherever possible, the Company 
strives to curtail the consumption of 
energy on a continuing basis.

Steps taken by the company for utilizing 
alternate sources of energy
Capital investment on energy conservation 
equipment’s
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B.	 Technology absorption:

Efforts made towards technology absorption Not Applicable

Benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution
Expenditure on Research & Development, if 
any
Details of technology imported, if any

Year of import

Whether imported technology fully absorbed

Areas where absorption of imported technology 
has not taken place, if any

C.	 Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:
	 Total Foreign exchange earned	 : NIL
	 Total Foreign exchange outgo	 : NIL

ANNUAL BOARD EVALUATION AND FAMILIARIZING PROGRAMME 

The Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, the directors and 
also Committees of the Board based on the guidelines formulated by the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee under Self-evaluation method. Board composition, quality and 
timely flow of information, frequency of meetings, and level of participation in discussions were 
some of the parameters considered during the evaluation process. A note on the familiarizing 
programme adopted by the Company for the orientation and training of the Directors and the 
Board evaluation process undertaken in compliance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is 
provided in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Report. Further, the 
Independent Directors of the Company met once during the year on 13th February, 2020 
to review the performance of the Non-executive directors, Chairman of the Company and 
performance of the Board as a whole. Details regarding familiarisation programme are also 
available on the website of the company.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company believes that a diverse and inclusive culture is integral to its success. A 
diverse Board, among others, will enhance the quality of decisions by utilizing different skills, 
qualifications, professional experience and knowledge of the Board members necessary 
for achieving sustainable and balanced development. Accordingly, Board based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated a policy 
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on directors appointment, remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management of the Company. The policy covers the appointment, including criteria for 
determining qualification, positive attributes, independence and remuneration of its Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel. The key highlights of the 
policy forms part of this Report. The entire Nomination and Remuneration Policy may be 
accessed on the Company’s website at www.elnettechnologies.com

ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to Section 177(9) of Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company has formulated 
a whistle blower mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns about unethical 
behaviour, actual or suspected frauds or violation of the Company’s code of conduct and 
ethics. The Audit Committee of the Board oversees the functioning of Whistle Blower Policy. 
The Whistle Blower Policy covering all employees and directors is available in the Company’s 
website at www.elnettechnologies.com

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENT OR GUARANTEES

The Company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provision of section 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the investments made by the Company are 
given in the notes to the financial statements which forms part of this Annual Report. 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Pursuant to section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has framed Risk 
Management Policy which lays down the framework to define, assess, monitor and mitigate 
the business, operational, financial and other risks associated with the business of the 
Company. The Company has been addressing risks impacting the Company in Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report which forms part of this Annual Report.

During the year the Company has not identified any new element of risk which may threaten 
the existence of the Company.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has Internal Complaints Committees as required under the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company firmly provides a safe, supportive and friendly workplace environment - a 
workplace where our values come to life through the underlying behaviours. Positive workplace 
environment and a great employee experience are integral parts of our culture.

During the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the provisions of Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of this 
Report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the financial year, the Company has not entered into any new contracts / arrangements 
with related parties which qualify as material in accordance with the Policy of the Company on 
materiality of related party transactions.

There are no materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict 
with interest of the company at large.

The details of the related party transactions as per Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) - 24 
are set out in Note No. 40 to the Financial Statements of the Company.

Form AOC-2 pursuant to Section 134 (2) (h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (2) 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is set out the ANNEXURE - II to the report.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved can be accessed at website of the 
company www.elnettechnologies.com.

REPORT AS PER SECTION 134 READ WITH RULE 8 AND SUB RULE 5 OF COMPANIES 
(ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

Change in nature of business, if any: NIL

Name of Companies which have become or ceased to be its subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or 
associate companies during the year: NA

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 
OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND 
COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the courts or regulators or 
tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an adequate internal control system which commensurate with the size, 
scale and complexity of its operations. The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy 
and adequacy of internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating 
systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company. Based on the 
report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective 
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areas and there by strengthen the controls. A report of Auditors pursuant to Section 143(3) (i) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 certifying the adequacy of Internal Financial Controls is annexed 
with the Auditors report.

COST AUDIT

Provisions relating to cost audit are not applicable to the Company.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS

The auditors of the Company has stated that during the course of their audit, there were no 
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees noticed or 
reported in Independent Auditors Report which forms part of this Report. Hence, there is 
no requirement arises to report the same to Audit Committee or Board of Directors of the 
Company.

PERSONNEL

Employee relations have been very cordial during the financial year ended 31st March, 2020. 
The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation to all the employees in the Company 
for their sustained efforts and immense contribution to the high level of performance and 
growth of the business during the year. The Management team of the Company comprises of 
experienced passionate driven professionals committed to the organizational goals.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors gratefully acknowledge the continued support and co-operation of Government 
of Tamil Nadu, Electronics Corporation of Tamil Nadu Ltd., (ELCOT).

The Directors also thank the Bankers, Axis Bank - Thiruvanmiyur Branch, State Bank of India 
- Industrial Finance Branch, Chennai, Canara Bank - Tidel Park Branch, Axis Bank - Chennai 
Main Branch, Mylapore and the Company’s customers, dealers, vendors and sub-contractors 
for their valuable support and assistance extended during the year. 

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the good work done by all the 
employees of the Company during the year under review

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 

Place	 :	 Chennai	 M. Vijayakumar IAS	 Unnamalai Thiagarajan 
Date	 :	 17th Aug, 2020	 Chairman	 Managing Director  
				    DIN: 08128389	 DIN: 00203154
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ANNEXURE - I TO BOARD’S REPORT

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

A. Disclosure with respect to the remuneration of Directors and employees as 
requiredunder Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of Companies 
(Appointmentand Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is as follows:

a)	 The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the company for the financial year 2019-20:

Name of Directors Designation Ratio to median remuneration
Unnamalai Thiagarajan Managing Director 3.18

	 None of the other directors received any remuneration from the company during the FY 
19-20.

b)	 b)	Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year 2019-20.

Name Designation
% increase in remuneration in 

financial year 2019-20
Unnamalai Thiagarajan Managing Director NIL
E. Kamakshi Chief Financial Officer 13
T. Joswa Johnson Company Secretary 42

c)	 Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2019-
20: 15.58%

d)	 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company: Nine

e)	 Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than 
themanagerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the 
percentileincrease in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and any 
exceptionalcircumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

	 The average increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in 2019-
20 was 17.67%. Percentage increase in managerial remuneration excluding Managing 
Director for the year was 19.65% and there were no increase in remuneration of the 
Managing Director. The increase in remunerations is in line with the market trends.

	 The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the 
Company.
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B.	 Information as per Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) 
& 5(3) of The Companies (Appointment and remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 forming part of the Boards Report for the year ended March 31, 2020.

	 The permanent employees on the rolls of the company is less than the requirement of 
the statement containing names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn 
and the particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of The Companies (Appointment and remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Any shareholder interested to obtain the details of 
the same may send a request to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 

Place	 :	 Chennai	 M. Vijayakumar IAS	 Unnamalai Thiagarajan 
Date	 :	 17th Aug, 2020	 Chairman	 Managing Director  
				    DIN: 08128389	 DIN: 00203154
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ANNEXURE - II TO BOARD’S REPORT

FORM NO. AOC.2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company 
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis.
	 NIL
2.	 Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis.

S.No. Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party Electronic Corporation of Tamil Nadu Ltd 

(ELCOT)
b) Nature of Relationship Joint Venture company holding 26% Equity 

capital of the company
c) Nature of contracts/ arrangements/transactions Leasing of land (lease taken)
d) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/

transactions
90 Years

e) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements 
or transactions including the value, if any

Leasing of land for 90 Years with effect from 
14.01.99

f) Amount paid as advances, if any Rs. 8,49,01,076/-

(Outstanding as on 31st March 2020 as per 
Ind AS)

Notes : During the financial year, the Company has not entered into any new contracts / 
arrangements with related parties which qualify as material in accordance with the policy of 
the Company on materiality of related party transactions.

The details of the related party transactions as per Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) – 24 
are set out in Note No. 39 to the Financial Statements of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 

Place	 :	 Chennai	 M. Vijayakumar IAS	 Unnamalai Thiagarajan 
Date	 :	 17th Aug, 2020	 Chairman	 Managing Director  
				    DIN: 08128389	 DIN: 00203154
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ANNEXURE - III TO BOARD’S REPORT 
Form No. MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 andRule 12(1) of the 
Companies(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.	 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
i. CIN : L72300TN1990PLC019459

ii. Registration Date : 01-08-1990

iii. Name of the Company : Elnet Technologies Limited

iv. Category / Sub-Category of the 
Company

: Company Limited by shares /  
Non-Govt Company

v. Address of the Registered office 
and contact details

: Elnet Software City 
TS 140 Block 2&9, Rajiv Gandhi Salai,  
Taramani, Chennai - 600 113. 
Email: elnetcity@gmail.com 
Contact: 044 22541971

vi. Whether listed company : Yes

vii. Name, Address and Contact 
details of Registrar and Transfer 
Agent, if any

: Cameo Corporate Services Limited 
“Subramanian Building”, 5th Floor, No.1,  
Club House Road, Chennai - 600 002.

II.	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
	 All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company 

shall be stated:

S. 
No. Name and Descriptionof main products / services NIC Code of the 

Product/ service
% to total turnover 

of the company

1 Real estate activities with own or leased property 
(Developing & Maintaning software techology park) 68100 100

III.	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. 
No.

Name and address 
of the company CIN/GLN

Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of 
shares 

held
Applicable section

NOT APPLICABLE
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(i)	 Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholder

No. of shares held at the beginning of the year No. of shares held at the end of the year % 
Change 
during 

the year
Demat Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF 0 0 0 0.00 369483 0 369483 9.24 +9.24
b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
c) State Govt (s) 1040006 0 1040006 26.00 1040006 0 1040006 26.00 0.00
d) Bodies Corp. 704372 0 704372 17.61 704372 0 704372 17.61 0.00
e) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
f) Any other... 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-Total (A)(1) 1744378 0 1744378 43.61 2113861 0 2113861 52.85 +9.24

(2) Foreign
a) NRIs-Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
b) Other-Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
e) Any other.... 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-Total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Total Shareholding of 
Promoter  
(A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2)

1744378 0 1744378 43.61 2113861 0 2113861 52.85 +9.24

B. Public Shareholding
(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
b) Banks/ FI 369483 0 369483 9.24 0 0 0 0.00 (9.24)
c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
g) FIIs 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
h) Foreign Venture Capital 
Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

i) Others 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-Total (B)(1) 369483 0 369483 9.24 0 0 0 0.00 (9.24)

(2) Non-institutions
a) Bodies Corp.

i)	 Indian 19996 5000 24996 0.62 22237 5000 27237 0.68 +0.06
ii)	 Overseas 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

b) Individuals
i)	 Individual 

shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
up to Rs. 1 lakh

950562 142372 1092934 27.32 858245 133772 992017 24.80 (2.52)

ii)	 Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of Rs. 1 
lakh

588762 0 588762 14.72 681021 0 681021 17.03 +2.31

IV.	 SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
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c) Others (specify)
IEPF 81047 0 81047 2.02 87128 0 87128 2.18 +0.15
Hindu undivided Family 71170 0 71170 1.78 66985 0 66985 1.67 (0.10)
Non Resident Indians 26675 0 26675 0.67 30729 0 30729 0.77 (0.10)
Clearing Member 562 0 562 0.01 1029 0 1029 0.02 +0.01
Sub-Total (B)(2) 1738774 147372 1886146 47.15 1747374 138772 1886146 47.15 0.00
Total Public 
Shareholding  
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)

2108257 147372 2255629 56.39 1747374 138772 1886146 47.15 (9.24)

C. Shares held Custodian 
for GDRs & ADRs 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

GRAND TOTAL 
(A)+(B)+(C) 3852635 147372 4000007 100.00 3861235 138772 4000007 100.00 0.00

(ii)	 Shareholding of Promoters

S. 
No. Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the beginning  
of the year

Shareholding at the end  
of the year

% change in 
Shareholding 

during the 
year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 ELECTRONICS CORPORATION 
OF TAMILNADU LTD 1040006 26.00 0.00 1040006 26.00 0 0.00

2 SHANUMUGAM THIAGARAJAN 0 0.00 0.00 369493 9.24 0 +9.24
3 STUR TECHNOLOGIES PVT LTD 450000 11.25 0.00 450000 11.25 0 0.00

4 SOUTHERN PROJECTS 
MANAGEMENT PVT LTD 254371 6.36 0.00 254371 6.36 0 0.00

5 STUR PROJECTS MANAGEMENT 
PVT LTD 1 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0 0.00

Total 1744378 43.61 0 2113861 52.85 0 +9.24

(iii)	 Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

S. 
No. Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Date of 
Increase / 
decrease

Reason for 
Increase/ 
decrease

No of 
Shares

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

1 ELECTRONICS 
CORPORATION OF 
TAMILNADU LTD

1040006 26.00 1040006 26.00
- No Change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 1040006 26.00

2 STUR 
TECHNOLOGIES 
PVT LTD

450000 11.25 450000 11.25
- No Change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 450000 11.25

3 SOUTHERN 
PROJECTS 
MANAGEMENT PVT 
LTD

254371 6.36 254371 6.36

- No Change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 254371 6.36
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(iv)	 Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and 
Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

S. 
No.

For each of the Top 10 
Shareholders

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year Date of 

Increase /
decrease

Reason for 
Increase/ 
decrease

No of 
Shares

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company
1 IDBI BANK LTD 369483 9.24 369483 9.24

06-03-2020

Transfer of 
shares as 

per the order 
of DRT-II, 

Chennai vide 
order No. DRC 
No.143/2008 in 
O.A. No.440/ 
2007 dated 
12.02.2020

(369483) 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year (369483) 0 0.00

2 SUBRAMANIAN P 134350 3.36 133450 3.36
8-Nov-2019 Sale (133450) 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year (133450) 0 0.00

3 SANGEETHA S 0 0.00 133450 3.36
8-Nov-2019 Purchase 134350 134350 3.36

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 134350 134350 3.36

4 IEPF-MCA 81047 2.03 81047 2.03

29-Nov-2019
Transfer of 

shares to IEPF 
2011-12

6011 87058 2.18

13-Dec-2019
Transfer of 

shares to IEPF 
2011-12

70 87128 2.18

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 6081 87128 2.18

4 STUR PROJECTS 
MANAGEMENT PVT 
LTD

1 0.00 1 0.00

- No Change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 1 0.00

5 SHANUMUGAM 
THIAGARAJAN

0 0.00 0 0.00

06-03-2020

Acquisition as 
per the order 

of DRT-II, 
Chennai vide 

order No. DRC 
No.143/2008 

in O.A. 
No.440/2007 

dated 
12.02.2020

369483 369483 9.24

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 369483 369483 9.24
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5 VINAY RAO K 62600 1.56 62200 1.56
- No Change 0 0 0

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 62600 1.56

6 VINAY KUMAR 50000 1.25 50000 1.25
12-Apr-2019 Purchase 1176 51176 1.28
03-May-2019 Purchase 125 51301 1.28
10-May-2019 Purchase 699 52000 1.30
17-May-2019 Purchase 103 52103 1.30
14-June-2019 Purchase 201 52304 1.31
21-June-2019 Purchase 566 52870 1.32
28-June-2019 Purchase 349 53219 1.33
05-July-2019 Purchase 1627 54846 1.37
12-July-2019 Purchase 625 55471 1.39
19-July-2019 Purchase 626 56097 1.40
26-July-2019 Purchase 531 56628 1.42
02-Aug-2019 Purchase 472 57100 1.43
09-Aug-2019 Purchase 150 57250 1.43
23-Aug-2019 Sale (60) 57190 1.43
06-Sep-2019 Sale (193) 56997 1.42
13-Sep-2019 Sale (246) 56751 1.42
27-Sep-2019 Purchase 249 57000 1.42
15-Nov-2019 Sale (9500) 47500 1.19
22-Nov-2019 Sale (1273) 46227 1.16
29-Nov-2019 Sale (939) 45288 1.13
13-Dec-2019 Sale (3) 45285 1.13
20-Dec-2019 Sale (25) 45260 1.13
27-Dec-2019 Sale (1270) 43990 1.10
31-Dec-2019 Sale (990) 43000 1.07
03-Jan-2020 Sale (1000) 42000 1.05
17-Jan-2020 Sale (417) 41583 1.04
31-Jan-2020 Sale (39) 41544 1.04
21-Feb-2020 Sale (284) 41260 1.03

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 50000 41260 1.03

7 NISHITH RAMESH 
PARIKH

45264 1.13 45264 1.13
11-Oct-2019 Purchase 11 45275 1.13
20-Dec-2019 Purchase 224 45499 1.14
27-Dec-2019 Purchase 2019 47518 1.19
31-Dec-2019 Purchase 1300 48818 1.22
20-Mar-2020 Purchase 533 49351 1.23
27-Mar-2020 Purchase 300 49651 1.24

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 4387 45264 1.13

8 MITA DIPAK SHAH

JT1 : DIPAK 
KANAYALAL SHAH
JT2 : SHARAD 
KANAYALAL SHAH

40000 0.99 40000 0.99
- No Change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 40000 0.99
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9 ARUN MITTAL 37803 0.95 37803 0.95
No Change 0 0 0

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 37803 0.95

10 JIGAR HASMUKH 
SAVLA

JT1 : HASMUKH 
RAVJI SAVLA

36790 0.91 36790 0.91
02-Aug-2019 Purchase 50 36840 0.92
30-Sep-2019 Purchase 3000 39840 1.00
04-Oct-2019 Purchase 1500 41340 1.03
25-Oct-2019 Purchase 2500 43840 1.10
15-Nov-2019 Purchase 3000 46840 1.17
06-Dec-2019 Purchase 148 46988 1.17
13-Dec-2019 Purchase 4449 51437 1.29
20-Dec-2019 Purchase 1000 52437 1.31
06-Mar-2020 Purchase 63 52500 1.31
13-Mar-2020 Purchase 7000 59500 1.49

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 22710 59500 1.49

10 VARSHA RAMESH 
PARIKH

30119 0.75 30119 0.75
04-Oct-2019 Purchase 1304 31423 0.79
11-Oct-2019 Purchase 710 32133 0.80
18-Oct-2019 Purchase 1212 33345 0.83
25-Oct-2019 Purchase 1100 34445 0.86
08-Nov-2019 Purchase 1048 35493 0.89
15-Nov-2019 Purchase 9184 44677 1.12
06-Mar-2020 Purchase 200 44877 1.12
13-Mar-2020 Purchase 1370 46247 1.16
20-Mar-2020 Purchase 4117 50364 1.26
27-Mar-2020 Purchase 1803 52167 1.30

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 22048 52167 1.30

11 SAMPATHRAJ 
RAMESHCHAND 
JAIN

0 0.00 0 0.00
20-Sep-2019 Purchase 27681 27681 0.69

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 27681 27681 0.69

12 SAMPATHRAJ 
RAMESH CHAND 
JAIN

27681 0.69 27681 0.69
20-Sep-2019 Sale (27681) 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year (27681) 0 0.00
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(v)	 Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

S. 
No.

For each of the 
Directors and Key 

Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year Date of 

Increase 
decrease

Reason for 
Increase/ 
decrease

No of 
Shares

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company
DIRECTORS

1 UNNAMALAI 
THIAGARAJAN

500 0.01 500 0.01
No change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 500 0.01

2 CHAKKOLATH 
RAMACHANDRAN

0 0.00 - 0 0 0.00
No change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 0 0.00

3 RAVI JANAKIRAMAN 0 0.00 - 0 0 0.00
No change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 0 0.00

4 M. VIJAYAKUMAR IAS 0 0.00 - 0 0 0.00
No change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 0 0.00

5 N. SRIVATHSA 
DESIKAN

0 0.00 - 0 0 0.00
No change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 0 0.00

6 H. KARTHIK 
SESHADRI

0 0.00 - 0 0 0.00
No change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 0 0.00

7 R. GANAPATHI 0 0.00 - 0 0 0.00
No change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 0 0.00

8 G. CHELLAKRISHNA 0 0.00 - 0 0 0.00
No change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 0 0.00

9 G. SENRAYA 
PERUMAL

0 0.00 - 0 0 0.00
No change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 0 0.00

10 K. KASIM IPS (RETD) 0 0.00 - 0 0 0.00
No change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 0 0.00

11 R. MADHAVAN
(Upto 24th Feb, 2020)

0 0.00 - 0 0 0.00
No change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 0 0.00
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V.	 INDEBTEDNESS 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for 
payment (Rs. In Lakhs)

Secured Loans 
excluding 
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans Deposits Total 

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i. Principal amount 0.00 426.34 0.00 426.34

ii. Interest due but not paid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

iii. Interest accrued but not due 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total (i+ii+iii) 0.00 426.34 0.00 426.34

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 • Addition 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 • Reduction 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net Change 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i. Principal amount 0.00 426.34 0.00 426.34

ii. Interest due but not paid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

iii. Interest accrued but not due 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total (i+ii+iii) 0.00 426.34 0.00 426.34

12 P.R NITHIYANANDAM
(w.e.f 18th 
March,2020)

0 0.00 - 0 0 0.00
No change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 0 0.00

13 A.P 
RADHAKRISHNAN

0 0.00 - 0 0 0.00
No change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 0 0.00

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

1  E. Kamakshi
Chief Financial Officer

0 0.00 - 0 0 0.00
No change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 0 0.00

2 T. Joswa Johnson
Company Secretary

0 0.00 - 0 0 0.00
No change 0 0 0.00

31-Mar-2020 At the end of 
the year 0 0 0.00
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VI.	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A.	 Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Sl. 
No. Particulars of Remuneration Unnamalai Thiagarajan  

(Managing Director)
1 Gross Salary

 (a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961
 (b) Value of Perquisites u/s 17(2) Income –tax Act,1961
 (c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act,1961

14.00
Nil
Nil

2 Stock Option Nil
3 Sweat Equity Nil
4 Commission

 -as % of profit
 -others, specify

Nil

5 Others, please specify Nil
Total (A) 14.00

Ceiling as per the Act
5% of Net Profit of the Company 
calculated as per Section 198 of 
the Companies Act, 2013

B.	 Remuneration to other directors: 

S. 
No. Name of independent Directors

Fee for 
attending Board 

/ Committee 
Meetings

Commission Others,  
Please specify

Total 
(Rs. in Lakhs)

1 G. Chellakrishna 0.70 Nil Nil 0.70
2 H. Karthik Seshadri 1.33 Nil Nil 1.33
3 R. Ganapathi 0.21 Nil Nil 0.21
4 K. Kasim 0.70 Nil Nil 0.70
5 G. Senrayaperumal 0.42 Nil Nil 0.42
6 A.P. Radhakrishnan 0.49 Nil Nil 0.49

TOTAL (B1) 3.85

S. 
No. Name of Non-Executive Directors

Fee for 
attending Board 

/ Committee 
Meetings

Commission Others,  
Please specify

Total 
(Rs. in Lakhs)

7 C. Ramachandran 1.54 Nil Nil 1.54
8 J. Ravi 0.56 Nil Nil 0.56
9 M. Vijayakumar IAS., 0.28 Nil Nil 0.28
10 R. Madhavan 0.28 Nil Nil 0.28
11 N. SrivathsaDesikan 0.77 Nil Nil 0.77
12 P.R Nithiyanandan 0.07 Nil Nil 0.07

TOTAL (B2) 3.50

TOTAL: B (B1 + B2) 7.35

Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B) 21.35
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C.	 REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD 
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sl. 
No. Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel
TotalCFO CS

E. Kamakshi T. Joswa Johnson
1 Gross Salary

(a)	 Salary as per provisions contained 
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax 
Act,1961

14.74 7.75 22.49

(b)	 Value of Perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income –tax Act,1961 - - -

(c)	 Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) Income-tax Act,1961 - - -

2 Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission

 -as % of profit
 -others, specify

- - -

5 Others, please specify 1.22 0.57 1.79
Total 15.96 8.32 24.28

VII.	 PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type
Section of the 

Companies 
Act

Brief 
Description

Details of 
Penalty/

Punishment/
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority 
(RD/NCLT/
COURT)

Appeal made, 
if any (give 

Details)

A.COMPANY
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
B.DIRECTORS
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
C.OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 

Place	 :	 Chennai	 M. Vijayakumar IAS	 Unnamalai Thiagarajan 
Date	 :	 17th Aug, 2020	 Chairman	 Managing Director  
				    DIN: 08128389	 DIN: 00203154
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ANNEXURE - IV TO BOARD’S REPORT
REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

1.	 A BRIEF OUTLINE OF THE COMPANY’S CSR POLICY, INCLUDING OVERVIEW OF 
PROJECTS / PROGRAMMES UNDERTAKEN

	 As per the Companies Act, 2013, Elnet Technologies Limited has a policy onCorporate 
Social Responsibility (hereinafter referred as CSR) which requires the companyto spend 
atleast 2% of average net profits of the immediately preceding 3 financial years on “CSR” 
activities. CSR involves incurring costs that do not provide an immediate financial benefit 
to the Corporates, but instead promote positive social and environmental change. In line 
with the above, Elnet’s CSR policy is designed keeping in mind the vision, mission, socio 
economic environment and capacities of the company. The policy on CSR can be viewed 
on the website www.elnettechnologies.com

2.	 COMPOSITION OF THE CSR COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

S. 
No.

Name Category Designation

1. Mr. J. Ravi
Non-Executive  
Director

Chairman

2. Mr. H. Karthik Seshadri
Non-Executive 
Independent Director

Member

3. Mr.N. Srivathsa Desikan Non-Executive Director Member

3.	 AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY FOR LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS

	 Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years (2017, 2018 and 2019) 
calculated in accordance with the provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 
is Rs.1201.81 lacs.

4.	 PRESCRIBED CSR EXPENDITURE (TWO PERCENT OF THE AMOUNT AS IN ITEM 
3 ABOVE) 

	 Two percent of the average net profit for last three financial years is Rs.24.05 Lacs

5.	 DETAILS OF CSR SPENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

a)	 Total amount to be spent for the financial year: Rs.24.05 Lacs

b)	 Amount unspent, if any: NIL
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c)	 Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.

CSR 
Project or 

activity 
identified

Sector in 
which the 
project is 
covered

Projects or 
Programs  
(1) Local 
area or 
other  

(2) Specify 
the State 

and District 
where 

projects or 
program 

was 
undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(budget) 
project or 
program 

wise  
(Rs. In 
lacs)

Amount 
spent on the 
Projects or 
Programs 

Sub-heads: 
(1) Direct 

Expenditure 
on projects 
or programs 

(2) 
Overheads 
(Rs. In lacs)

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto to the 
reporting 

period  
(Rs. In lacs)

Amount spent: 
Direct

Eradicating 
hunger

Eradicating 
hunger, 

poverty and 
malnutrition

Local Area: 
Chennai, 
Tamilnadu

9.65 9.65 9.65 Bharathi  
SevaSangam,  

Tamilnadu

Promoting 
education

Promoting 
education

Other: 
Mumbai, 

Maharashtra

14.40 14.40 14.40 Indian Institute of 
Technology, 

Mumbai
TOTAL 24.05 24.05 24.05

6.	 In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the 
last three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for 
not spending the amount in its Board report- NOT APPLICABLE

7.	 A responsibility statement of the CSR Committeethat the implementation and monitoring 
of CSRPolicy,is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

	 The Board of Directors and its CSR Committee are whole-heartedly committed to fulfilling 
the Company’s Corporate Social Responsibilitiesto be a trusted partner while striving to 
contribute to a safer and better quality of life. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 

Place	 :	 Chennai	 Unnamalai Thiagarajan	 J. Ravi 
Date	 :	 17th Aug, 2020	 Managing Director	 Chairman of CSR Committee 
				    DIN: 00203154	 DIN: 00042953
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ANNEXURE-V TO BOARD’S REPORT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS AND OUTLOOK

Your company is engaged in developing and maintaining an integrated software technology 
park and Business Process Outsourcing Industries. The growth and progress of the company 
depends directly on the prospects of Software and BPO Industry. In the opinion of the Board, 
the growth in the Software and BPO Industry is fairly good and the demand for space is 
expected to remain at the same level.

OPPORTUNITIES, THREATS, RISKS AND CONCERNS

The consistent growth in the Software and BPO sector and turn around in Software and BPO 
industry are an opportunity while creation of large-scale commercial space which may create 
pressure on the rate per sq. ft. as well as occupancy are certain areas of concern.

SEGMENT WISE / PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company has only one reportable segment in accordance with Ind AS 108 as “Operating 
Segments”. Hence, Segment wise / product wise performance is not applicable to your 
company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ADEQUACY

The Company has an adequate internal control system which commensurate with the size, 
scale and complexity of its operations. The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy 
and adequacy of internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating 
systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company. Based on the 
report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective 
areas and there by strengthen the controls. A report of Auditors pursuant to Section 143(3) (i) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 certifying the adequacy of Internal Financial Controls is annexed 
with the Auditors report.

Your Company’s internal control system is well defined and is commensurate with the size 
and nature of the business. The operations are subject to a detailed internal audit and the 
company implements the remedial measures suggested by the internal auditors.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
FRONT

There were no material developments in relation to Human Resources / Industrial Relations 
in your Company as the Company has minimum employee strength. The Company has on 
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its Roll seven employees (excluding Managing Director) and the rest of the operations are 
carried through outsourcing.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH REFERENCE TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The financial performance with reference to the operation of the company is detailed in the 
Board’s Report (please refer page no. 20).

The comparison for the past ten years standalone financial highlights is provided in the annual 
report (please refer page no. 2).

TRENDS ON FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
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PRICE EARNING RATIO (IN TIMES)
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RETURN ON NETWORTH  (%)

DISCLAIMER 

The above statements are as perceived by the directors based on the current scenario and 
the input available. Any extraneous developments and force majeure conditions may have an 
impact on the above perceptions.

RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED (%)

15.30
13.48

17.51

2019‐20

2018‐19

2017‐18
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ANNEXURE-VI TO BOARD’S REPORT

Certificate on Compliance under SEBI  
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015

To 

The Members, 
ELNET TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED, 
TS 140 Block 2 & 9, CPT Road, 
Taramani, Chennai - 600 113.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Elnet 
Technologies Limited(“the Company”) for the year ended 31st March, 2020, as stipulated in 
regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule 
V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing 
Regulations”).

We state that the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of 
the management, and our examination was limited to a review of the procedures adopted 
and implementation thereof, by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions 
of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, andthe representations made by the Directors and the Management and considering the 
relaxations grantedby the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities andExchange Board of 
India warranted due to the spread ofthe COVID-19 pandemic. We certify that the company 
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the aforesaid 
provisions of the Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company.

For BP & Associates
Company Secretaries

C. Prabhakar
Partner

M No: 30433
Place	 : Chennai	 CP No: 11033
Date	 : 17th Aug, 2020 	 UDIN: A030433B000581940
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

1.	 STATEMENT ON COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

The Company believes in ensuring corporate fairness, transparency, professionalism, 
accountability and propriety in total functioning of the Company, which are pre-requisites for 
attaining sustainable growth in this competitive corporate world. Obeying the law, both in 
letter and in spirit, is the foundation on which the Company’s ethical standards are built. The 
Company would constantly endeavour to improve on these aspects.

The Company’s policies, practices and philosophy adopted since inception are in line 
withCorporate Governance. These policies, practices are required periodically to ensure 
itseffective compliance. The composition of Board of Directors is well balanced with a view 
tomanage the affairs of the Company efficiently and professionally.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the Board), which consists of eminent persons with considerable 
professional expertise and experience, provides leadership and guidance to the management, 
thereby enhancing stakeholders’ value.

The Board has an ideal combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directorsand is in 
conformity with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.The day-to-day management 
of the company is carried by Mrs. Unnamalai Thiagarajan, Managing Director and Woman 
Director of the company.

All independent directors possess the requisite qualifications and are well experienced 
intheirfields. Pursuant to provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of 
the Company all the Directors except the Chairman, Managing Director, and Independent 
Directorsare eligible to retire by rotation. Annual disclosures have been obtained from all the 
directors regarding their directorship as at 31st March, 2020 and the same has been taken on 
record by the Board.



53

a) Board composition and category of Directors

The Composition of the Board of Directors and category of them are as follows:

S. 
No.

Name of the Director DIN Designation Category

1 Mr. M. Vijayakumar IAS., 08128389 Chairman
NE-NID  

2 Mrs. UnnamalaiThiagarajan 00203154
Managing 
Director

ED &
Women Director

3
Mr. C. Ramachandran, IAS 
(Retd)

00050893 Director NE-NID

4 Mr. J.Ravi 00042953 Director NE-NID

5
Mr. R. Madhavan
(Upto 24th Feb,2020)

02345801 Director NE-NID

6 Mr. N. Srivathsa Desikan 08205725 Director NE-NID

7 Mr. G. Chellakrishna 01036398
Independent 

Director
NE-ID

8 Mr. R. Ganapathi 00103623
Independent 

Director
NE-ID

9 Mr. H. Karthik Seshadri 00203319
Independent 

Director
NE-ID

10 Mr. G. Senrayaperumal 01458026
Independent 

Director
NE-ID

11 Mr. K. Kasim, Retd., IPS 02959356
Independent 

Director
NE-ID

12 Mr. A.P. Radhakrishnan 03642690
Independent 

Director
NE-ID

11
Mr. P.R. Nithiyanandan
(w.e.f 18th March, 2020)

07721702 Director NE-NID

NE-NID	- Non Executive Non Independent Director
NE-ID	 - Non Executive Independent Director
ED	 - Executive Director
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b) Attendance of Directors at Board meeting and last Annual General Meeting (AGM)

S. 
No.

Name of the Director No.of Board 
Meetings 

held during 
their tenure

No.of Board 
Meetings 
attended

Attendance 
at the last 

AGM

1 Mr. M. Vijayakumar, IAS 6 4 Yes
2 Mrs. Unnamalai Thiagarajan 6 5 Yes
3 Mr. C. Ramachandran, IAS, (Retd) 6 6 Yes
4 Mr. J. Ravi 6 2 Yes
5 Mr. N. Srivathsa Desikan 6 6 Yes

6
Mr. R. Madhavan
(w.e.f. 7th Feb, 2019 till 24th 
February 2020)

5 4 Yes

7 Mr. R. Ganapathi 6 1 Yes
8 Mr. H. KarthikSeshadri 6 4 No
9 Mr. G. Senrayaperumal 6 5 Yes
10 Mr. K. Kasim, IPS (Retd) 6 5 Yes
11 Mr. G. Chellakrishna 6 5 Yes
12 Mr. A. P Radhakrishnan 6 6 Yes

13
Mr. P. R Nithiyanandan
(w.e.f 18th March, 2020)

1 1 NA
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c) Number of other board of directors or committees in which the directors are the 
member or chairperson in listed entities.

Sl. 
No.

Name of the Director *Number of 
Directorship

**Number of 
Membership

***Number of 
Chairmanship

1 Mr. M. Vijayakumar IAS., 1 0 0
2 Mrs. Unnamalai Thiagarajan 1 0 0
3 Mr. C. Ramachandran, IAS., (Retd) 1 2 1
4 Mr. J. Ravi 1 0 0
5 Mr. N. Srivathsa Desikan 1 1 0

6
Mr. R. Madhavan  
(till 24th February, 2020)

1 0 0

7 Mr. R. Ganapathi 3 5 1
8 Mr. H. Karthik Seshadri 1 2 0
9 Mr. G. Senrayaperumal 1 0 0
10 Mr. K. Kasim, IPS (Retd.,) 1 1 0
11 Mr. G. Chellakrishna 2 2 2
12 Mr. A. P Radhakrishan 1 0 0

13
Mr. P. R Nithiyanandan
(w.e.f 18th March, 2020)

1 0 0

Notes:

* Number of Directorship held denotes No. of Directorship in listed entities (including Elnet 
Technologies limited).

**Number of membership denotes membership in Audit/Stakeholder relationship Committeein 
all listed entities (including Elnet Technologies limited).

***Number of chairmanship denotes chairmanship in Audit/Stakeholder relationshipCommittee 
in listed companies (including Elnet Technologies Limited).
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The name of other listed entities where the person is a director and the category of 
directorship

Name of Director Name of Listed entities Category of directorship
Mr. M. Vijayakumar IAS., - -
Mrs.Unnamalai Thiagarajan - -
Mr. C. Ramachandran, IAS., 
(Retd)

- -

Mr. J. Ravi - -
Mr. N. Srivathsa Desikan - -
Mr. R. Madhavan 
(till 24th February, 2020)

- -

Mr. P. R Nithiyanandan 
(from 18th March, 2020)

- -

Mr. R. Ganapathi
Orient Green Power 
Company Limited

Non- Executive - 
Independent Director

Trigyn Technologies Limited Executive Director
Mr. H. Karthik Seshadri - -
Mr. G. Senrayaperumal - -
Mr. K. Kasim, IPS (Retd.,) - -

Mr. G. Chellakrishna
Manali Petrochemicals 

Limited
Non Executive Independent 

Director
Mr. A. P Radhakrishnan - -
Mr. P. R Nithiyanandan - -

d) Number and Dates of meetings of Board of Directors held 

During the financial year ended 31st March 2020, 6 (six) board meetings were held viz.,27th 
May, 2019, 09th Aug, 2019, 20th Sep, 2019, 12th Nov, 2019, 13th Feb, 2020 and 18th Mar, 
2020. The interval between any two meetings was well within the maximum allowed gap of 
120 days.

The date and timings of Board/Committee Meetings are pre-scheduled based on the availability 
confirmation circulated to the Directors well in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedule 
and to ensure meaningful participation in the meetings.
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The company places before the Board all those details as required under SEBI 
(LODR),Regulations, 2015. The dates for the board meetings are fixed after taking into 
account the convenience of all the directors and sufficient notice is given to them. The Agenda 
for the Board and Committee meetings include detailed notes on the items to be discussed at 
the meeting to enable the Directors to take an informed decision. All the information required 
for decision making are incorporated in the agenda. Those are not included in the agenda are 
tabled at the meeting. The board taking on record the actions taken by the company on all its 
decisions periodically.The Board also taking on record the compliances made by the company 
secretary and the chief financial officer of applicable laws on a quarterly basis.

The Board also taking on record the compliances made by the Company Secretary and the 
Chief Financial Officer of all laws on a quarterly basis.

Board Support

The Company Secretary is responsible for collation, review and distribution of all papers 
submitted to the Board and Committees thereof for consideration.The Company Secretary is 
also responsible for preparation of the Agenda and convening of the Board and Committee 
meetings. The Company Secretary attends all the meetings of the Board and its Committees, 
in the capacity of Secretary of the Committees, assures the Board following the Compliance 
and Governance principles and ensures appropriate recording of minutes of the meetings.

e)	 Disclosure of relationship between the Directors inter-se

None of the Board of Directorsis related to each other.

f)	 Details of shares and convertible instruments held by non- executive directors

None of the non-executive directors including Independent directors holds any equity shares 
in the Company as on the financial year ended 31st March 2020 and the Company has not 
issued any convertible instruments.

g)	 Familiarization Programme of Independent Director

The Independent directors are provided with necessary documents, reports, internal 
policies,documents and brochures enabling them to familiarize with the Company’s 
systems,procedures and practices. During every meeting of the Board and committees, 
periodical presentations are made on the business updates, strategies, performances and 
related risks involved. The details of such familiarization programmes for the Independent 
Directors are posted on the website of the Company www.elnettechnoloiges.com
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h)	 A chart or a matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the board of 
directors specifying the list of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the 
board of directors as required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s) for it to 
function effectively and those actually available with the board

The Board of Directors of our company comprises professional members who bring in the 
required skills, competence and expertise in the field of Financial Management,Corporate 
Management, Leadership, Engineering (Projects) and legal that allows them to make effective 
contributions to the Board and its committees. The Board members are committed to ensuring 
that the Board of Directors is in compliance with the highest standards of corporate governance.

While evaluating the Board as a whole, it was ensured that the existing board members have 
relevant core skills/expertise /competencies as required in the context of its business and 
sector(s) to function effectively.

Skills Description

Financial 
Management

Practical knowledge and experience in Corporate Finance, accounting 
and reporting and internal financial controls,including strong ability to 
asses financial impact of decision making and ensure profitable and 
sustainable growth.

Corporate 
Management 
and 
Governance

Board level experience in reputed organisations, with strong understanding 
of and experience indirecting the management in the best interests of 
the Company and its stakeholders and in upholding high standards of 
governance.

Leadership

Experience of playing leadership rolesin large businesses, with 
competencies around strategy development & implementation, sales & 
marketing,business administration/operations and Organisations and 
people management.

Engineering Executive knowledge in the field of business process.
Regulatory and 
Legal

Strong expertise and experience incorporate law and regulatory 
compliance in India and overseas (including industry specific laws).

Professional Background & Skills / expertise / competency of Directors:

Name of the Directors Brief description about the Directors
Mr. M. Vijayakumar, IAS Mr. M. Vijayakumar is an Indian Administrative Officer. He is 

the chairman of the Company. He is also a Managing Director 
of Electronics Corporation of Tamil Nadu Limited and holding 
directorship in various companies. He is expert in Corporate 
Management, Crisis Management and conflict resolution 
management.
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Mrs. Unnamalai 
Thiagarajan

Mrs. Unnamalai Thiagarajan is the Managing Director of the 
company. She is also holding directorship in various companies. 
She is graduated in Legal and having 25 years of experience 
in Business Management, Legal and also in Plantation 
Management.

Mr. C. Ramachandran, 
IAS, (Retd)

Mr. C. Ramachandran IAS (Retd.) is a retired Indian 
Administrative Officer. He was served for Government in various 
responsibilities, worked in public sector companies and retired 
as Principal Secretary, Industries Dept., He is specialised in the 
area of Corporate Management of our company.

Mr. J. Ravi Mr. J. Ravi is graduated in B.Tech - Chemical Engineering.He 
has 34 years of experience in International Trading.

Mr. G. Chellakrishna Mr. G. Chellakrishna is an Independent director of the company. 
He is a Chartered Accountant and Practicing over 2 decades. 
He is the chairman of Audit Committee of the company. He has 
vast experience in Financial management, Corporate Finance, 
Business administration, regulatory and governance matters.

Mr. R. Ganapathi Mr.R. Ganapathi is an Independent director of the company. 
He is graduated in Bachelor of Technology- (Mechanical 
Engineering-IIT) .He is expert in Engineering-Management, IT 
Training, Construction and Heavy machinery trading.

Mr. H. KarthikSeshadri Mr. H. Karthik Seshadri is an Independent director of the 
company. He is graduated in Law [LLB (Hons)]. He has extensive 
practice over the past 19 years with emphasis on commercial 
and corporate litigations, Mergers & Acquisitions, as also other 
Non litigation transactional work. Credited with arguing a number 
of cases before the High Court of Madras and other Tribunal, 
Customs, Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Securities 
Appellate Tribunal, Mumbai and having a number of these cases 
reported in many law journals.

Mr. A. P Radhakrishnan Mr. A. P Radhakrishnan is an Independent director of the 
company. He is graduated in Bachelor of Engineering (CIVIL) 
and Master of Business administration. He has 40 Years of 
experience in Civil engineering projects. He is Expert in project 
planning, training, advising, execution, Monitoring and Control, 
and Administration etc.,

Mr. N. Srivathsa Desikan Mr. N. Srivathsa Desikan is graduated in Bachelor of commerce 
and Master in Social Work (Human resources). He is also a 
Member of the Institute of Company Secretary of India (ICSI). 
He is a professional and expertise in Corporate Compliances & 
Governance and Sustainability of the company.
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Mr. G. Senrayaperumal Mr. G. Senrayaperumal is an Independent director of the 
company. He is graduated in commerce. He had 23 years of 
service in CBCID, The State’s leading Investigating Agency 
of Tamil Nadu Government. He is specialised in Corporate 
Management of the company

Mr. K. Kasim, IPS (Retd) Mr. K. Kasim IPS (Retd.) is an Independent director of the 
company and he has vast experience in teaching profession. He 
is eminent writer of political, Religious, etc and he is Expert in 
Corporate Management.

Mr. P. R Nithiyanandan  
(w.e.f 18th March, 2020)

Mr. P. R Nithiyanandan is non-executive Director of the company. 
Mr. P. R Nithiyanandan is also holding Directorship in other 
companies. He has 34 years of experience in procurement, 
promotional and legal.

i)	 Confirmation that in the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfill the 
conditions specified in these regulations and are independent of the management.
In opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors of the Company fulfil the conditions specified 
in the SEBI Listing Regulations and are Independent in the Management of the Company.

j) Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before 
the expiry of his tenure along with a confirmation by such director that there are no 
other material reasons other than those provided.
None of the independent directors resigned during the financial year 2019-20.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

(a) Brief description of terms of reference

The audit committee assists the board in the dissemination of financial information and 
inoverseeing the financial and accounting processes in the company. The terms of reference 
ofthe audit committee covers all matters specified in Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR), 
Regulations,2015 and also those specified in section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The audit committee reviews the compliance with legal and statutory requirements, thequarterly 
and annual financial statements and reports its findings to the Board. The committee also 
recommends the appointment of internal auditor, statutory auditor and secretarial auditor. 
The audit committee takes note of any default in the payments to creditors and shareholders.
The committee also looks into those matters specifically referred to it by the Board. The 
statutory auditors were present at all audit committee meetings held during the financial year 
2019-20.

The broad terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as follows

•	 Review of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 
Information
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•	 Reviewing with management, the annual financial statements before submission to the 
Board, focusing primarily on (i) Any change in accounting policies and practices, (ii) Major 
accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by management, (iii) Qualifications in 
draft audit report, (iv) Significant adjustments arising out of audit, (v) The going concern 
assumption, (vi) Compliance with accounting standards, (vii) Compliance with the 
SEBI(LODR), Regulations, 2015 and legal requirements concerning financial statements 
and (viii) any related party transactions i.e. transactions of the company of material 
nature,with promoters or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc., that may 
have potential conflict with the interests of company at large.

•	 Reviewing with the management, external and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal 
control systems.

•	 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit functions.
•	 Discussion with external auditors before the audit commences, nature and scope of audit 

as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.
•	 Reviewing the company’s various financial and risk management policies and practices

(b) Composition of the Audit Committee
The composition of the Audit Committee is in accordance with the provisions of Section 177of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.The Composition ofAudit 
Committee for the financial year ended 31st March 2020 was as follows:

S.No. Name Position Category

1 Mr. G Chellakrishna Chairman Non-Executive-Independent Director

2 Mr. C Ramachandran IAS(Rtd.,) Member Non-Executive-Non Independent Director

3 Mr. R Ganapathi Member Non-Executive-Independent Director

4 Mr. H Karthik Seshadri Member Non-Executive-Independent Director

5 Mr. K Kasim IPS (Retd) Member Non-Executive-Independent Director

6 Mr. N. Srivathsa Desikan Member Non-Executive-Non independent Director

(c) Meeting and attendance of Audit Committee
The dates of meeting held during the year under review
The members of Audit Committee met 04 (Four) times during the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2020. i.e., 27th May, 2019, 09th Aug, 2019, 12th Nov, 2019 and 13th Feb, 2020.
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The particulars of attendance by the members of the Committee during the year under 
review

S.No. Name Position No. of 
Meetings held

No. of Meetings 
attended

1 Mr. G.Chellakrishna Chairman 4 4
2 Mr. C.Ramachandran,IAS (Retd) Member 4 4
3 Mr. R.Ganapathi Member 4 1
4 Mr. H.KarthikSeshadri Member 4 2
5 Mr. N. Srivathsa Desikan Member 4 4
6 Mr. K Kasim, IPS (Retd) Member 4 4

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. Mrs. E. Kamakshi, 
Chief Financial Officer was present at all the audit meetings held during the year.  
Mrs.Geetha Jeyakumar, Partner of M/s. MSKA & Associates, Statutory Auditors of the 
Company is regular invitee to the meeting. The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present 
at the Company’s 28th Annual General Meeting held on 09th August, 2019 to answer the 
shareholders’ queries.

4)	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

a)	 Brief description of terms of reference

The constitution of the committee is in compliance of Section 178 of the Companies Act,2013, 
read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 
and Regulation 19 and Part D (Point A) of the Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The terms of reference of the committee are as follows:

1.	 Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to 
the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

2.	 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the 
Board of directors.

3.	 Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors.

4.	 Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed 
in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the 
board of directors their appointment and removal.

5.	 Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent director, on 
the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.
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b) Composition of the Nomination and remuneration committee

S.No. Name Position Category
1 Mr. R. Ganapathi Chairman Non-Executive, Independent Director
2 Mr. C Ramachandran, IAS (Retd) Member Non-Executive- Non Independent Director
3 Mr. H Karthik Seshadri Member Non-Executive, Independent Director

c) Meetings and attendance details during the financial year

The dates of meeting held during the year under review
The members of Nomination and remuneration committee met 02 (Two) times during the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2020. i.e., 27th May, 2019 and 18th March, 2020.

The particulars of attendance by the members of the Committee during the year under 
review

S.No. Name Position No. of Meetings 
held

No. of Meetings 
attended

1 Mr. R. Ganapathi Chairman 2 0
2 Mr. C. Ramachandran, IAS (Retd) Member 2 2
3 Mr. H Karthik Seshadri Member 2 2

d) Performance evaluation criteria for independent directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has devised criteria for evaluation of 
theperformance of the Directors including Independent Directors. Their criteria provide for 
certainparameters below.

a.	 Attendance at Meetings - attendance at Board Meetings, General and Committee 
meetings. 

b.	 Other Directorships held by the Non-Executive Director in listed or unlisted companies 

c.	 Other companies in which Non Executive Director is a Chairperson 

d.	 Participation at Board/Committee meetings 

e.	 Input in strategy decisions 

f.	 Review of Financial Statements, risks and business performance 

g.	 Time devoted towards discussion with Management 

h.	 Review of Minutes - Board Minutes, Committee meeting minutes and AGM Minutes. 

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual directors including 
the Chairman of the Board and Managing Director, who were evaluated on parameters such 
as level of engagement and contribution, independence of judgment, safe guarding the 
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interest of the Company and its various stakeholders etc. The performance evaluation of the 
Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the 
Chairman and the Non-independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors; 
the Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

5. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS

a) Pecuniary relationship or transaction of the Non-executive Directors

There were no other pecuniary relationships or transactions of the non - executive directors’vis-
à-vis the company during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2020 except payment ofsitting 
fees as disclosed below.

b) Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors
The Company has created and laid down the criteria for making payments to the  
Non-Executive Directors as enumerated in the Nomination and Remuneration policy which 
can beaccessed in website of the Company www.elnettechnologies.com

c) Disclosure with respect to remuneration
Disclosures with respect remuneration paid during the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 
as per Companies Act, 2013:

Remuneration to Non-executive Directors
The details of remuneration (sitting fees) paid to non-executive directors during the financial 
year ended 31st March 2020 isgiven below.

S.No. Name of the Non-Executive Directors
Sitting Fee paid 
(Rs. in Lakhs)

1 Mr. M. Vijayakumar,IAS 0.28
2 Mr. C. Ramachandran, IAS, (Retd) 1.54
3 Mr. J. Ravi 0.56
4 Mr. N. Srivathsa Desikan 0.77
5 Mr. R. Madhavan (till 24thFebrurary, 2020) 0.28
6 Mr. R. Ganapathi 0.21
7 Mr. H. Karthik Seshadri 1.33
8 Mr. G. Senrayaperumal 0.42
9 Mr. K. Kasim, IPS (Retd) 0.70
10 Mr. G. Chellakrishna 0.70
11 Mr. A.P Radhakrishnan 0.49
12 Mr. P. R Nithiyanandan (w.e.f 18th Mar, 2020) 0.07
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Remuneration to Executive Directors
Mrs. Unnamalai Thiagarajan is the Managing Director of the Company.Total remuneration 
paid to Mrs. Unnamalai Thiagarajan, Managing Director, during the Financial Year 2019-20 
was Rs.14.00 lacs. No other perquisites or other allowances werepaid to her during the year.

Disclosures with respect to remuneration paid during the financial year ended  
31st March, 2020 as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
Details of service contracts, notice period, severance fees.
The appointment of directors was in accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of 
directors and subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company.

During the year ended 31st March 2020, none of the executive and non-executive directors 
were issued/granted employee stock options of the Company.

6) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
a) Composition of the Committee and attendance

S.No. Name of the Members Position Category

1 Mr. C Ramachandran, IAS (Retd) Chairman
Non-Executive, Non-Independent 

Director

2 Mr. R.Ganapathi Member Non-Executive- Independent Director

3 Mr. H.Karthik Seshadri Member Non-Executive- Independent Director

The dates of meeting held during the year under review

The members of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee met 3 (Three) times during the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2020. i.e., 22th May, 2019, 09th Aug, 2019, and 13th Feb, 
2020.

The particulars of attendance by the members of the Committee during the year under 
review:

S.No. Name of the Members Position No. of Meetings 
held

No. of Meetings 
Attended

1 Mr. C Ramachandran, IAS (Retd) Chairman 3 3
2 Mr. R.Ganapathi Member 3 1
3 Mr. H. Karthik Seshadri Member 3 2



66

TWENTY NINTH Annual REPORT 2019 - 20

The Chairman of the Committee was present at the Company’s 28th Annual General Meeting 
held on 9th August, 2019 to answer the shareholders’ queries.

b) Name and designation of Compliance Officer

Mr. T. Joswa Johnson is the Company Secretary and ComplianceOfficer (Key Managerial 
Personnel) of the Company.

Brief description and term of reference

Pursuant to Regulations 13 and 20 and Part-D of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing obligationsand 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Committee oversees and reviews there 
dressal of investors’ grievances pertaining to transfer of shares and dematerialization, re-
materialization, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends, etc.

The Company is in compliance with the SCORES, which has been initiated by SEBI for 
processing the investor complaints in a centralized web based redressal system and online 
redressal of all the shareholders complaints.

Status of Shareholders complaints/grievances

The following is the status of Shareholders complaints during the financial year ended 31st 
March 2020.

S.No. Particulars
*No. of 

Complaints
1 Number of investor complaints pending at the beginning of the year 0

2 Number of investor complaints received during the year 0

3 Number of investor complaints disposed off during the year 0

4 Number of investor complaints remaining unresolved at the end of the year 0

*Based on the quarterly investors’ grievance report submitted to the stock exchanges pursuantto 
Regulation 13 of SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 
during the financial year ended 31st March 2020.

OTHER COMMITTEES

SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE

The Board constituted Share Transfer Committee to approve share transfer, transmissions,issue 
of duplicate share certificates, dematerialization of shares etc. The actions of sharetransfer 
committee are being placed at the subsequent Board meeting for Board information.
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The composition of the Committee:

S.No. Name Position Category
1 Mr. J.Ravi Member Non-Executive Director
2 Mr. H. Karthik Seshadri Member Non-Executive Independent Director
3 Mr. C. Ramachandran, IAS (Retd) Member Non-Executive Director

The dates of meeting held during the year under review

The members of Share Transfer Committeemet 7 (Seven) times during the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2020. i.e., 12th Apr, 2019, 16th May, 2019, 12th July, 2019, 19th Aug, 
2019, 6th Sep, 2019, 1st Nov, 2019 and 19th Mar, 2020.

The particulars of attendance by the members of the Committee during the year under 
review

S.No. Name Position No of Meetings Held No of Meetings Attended
1 Mr. J.Ravi Member 7 5
2 Mr. H. Karthik Seshadri Member 7 7
3 Mr. C. Ramachandran, IAS Member 7 7

The Committee also reviews the performance of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents. 
The meetings of Share Transfer Committee are held whenever the necessity arises. Transfer/ 
Transmission of Shares, issuance of Duplicate Share certificate are processed and registered 
within the stipulated time subject to the availability of all required valid documents and 
completed in all respects.

PURCHASE COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted the Purchase Committee on 25th October, 2006 under the 
directions of the Board. It is empowered to identify the qualified vendors for taking advantage 
of competitive pricing.

The Composition of the Committee is given hereunder

S.No. Name Position Category
1 Mr. R. Ganapathi Member Non-Executive Independent Director
2 Mr. H. Karthik Seshadri Member Non-Executive Independent Director

During the financial year, therewere no meeting held to transact the Business in purchase 
Committee.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility committee in accordance 
with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Committee has formulated a policy on 
Corporate Social Responsibility. The composition of the committee and attendance details of 
members is follows.

S.No. Name Position No of Meetings Held No of Meetings Attended
1 Mr. J. Ravi Chairman 1 1
2 Mr. N. Srivathsa Desikan Member 1 1
3 Mr. H. Karthik Seshadri Member 1 1

Mr. T. Joswa Johnson, Company Secretary of the Company was the Secretary to the 
Committee.

The terms of reference of CSR Committee shall, inter-alia, include the following:

1.	 Formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy which shall indicate the activities 
to be undertaken by the Company as per schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

2.	 Review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities to 
beundertaken by the company

3.	 Monitor the CSR policy of the Company from time to time;

4.	 Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of theBoard 
of Directors or as may be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

During the financial year ended 31st March 2020, the Corporate Social Responsibility 
committee met once on 13th Feb, 2020.

MEEITNG OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the financial year ended 31st March 2020, the Independent Directors met on 13th 
Feb 2020 without the presence of the Executive Directors and management personnel of the 
Company. Such meetings are conducted to enable Independent Directors inter alia to discuss:

1.	 Evaluation of the performance of the Non Independent Directors and the Board of 
Directors as a Whole:

2.	 Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the 
views of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

3.	 Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the 
management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably 
perform its duties.
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The evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board and thatof the 
Chairman and theNon-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. 
The directors were satisfied with the evaluations.

All the Independent Directors were present except Mr. R Ganapathi.

7) GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
Location and timewhere last three annual general meetings were held:

Location Date Time
Special resolutions passed at the Annual 

General Meetings (AGM)

New Woodlands Hotel Pvt. Ltd.,  
Chennai.

09th Aug,  
2019

11.00 AM

1.	 Re-appointment of Mr. G. Chellakrishna  
(DIN: 01036398) as Non-Executive 
Independent Director.

2.	 Re-appointment of Mr. R. Ganapathi  
(DIN: 00103623) as Non-Executive 
Independent Director.

3.	 Re-appointment of Mr. H KarthikSeshadri  
(DIN: 00203319) as Non-Executive 
Independent Director.

4.	 Re-appointment of  
Mr. K Kasim IPS.,(Retd.,) (DIN:02959356) as 
Non-Executive Independent Director.

5.	 Re-appointment of Mr. G. Senrayaperumal 
(DIN: 01458026) as Non-Executive 
Independent Director.

New Woodlands Hotel Pvt. Ltd.,  
Chennai.

09th Aug,  
2018

11.00 AM No special resolution(s) was passed

New Woodlands Hotel Pvt. Ltd.,  
Chennai.

06th July,  
2017

11.00 AM Appointment of Statutory auditors

There was no Extra Ordinary General meeting held during the last 3 years.
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POSTAL BALLOT
Special resolution passed during the previous year through postal ballot - details of 
voting pattern:
The Company has not passed any ordinary/special resolution during previous year ended 31st 
March, 2020 through postal ballot and accordingly details pertaining to person who conducted 
the postal ballot exercise and procedure for postal ballot does not arise.

There is no imminent proposal for passing any special resolution through Postal Ballot on or 
before the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a) Quarterly results
The Company’s quarterly financial results and the audited annual financial results areannounced 
as per the requirements of the SEBI (Listing obligations and DisclosureRequirements) 
Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchange. The aforesaid financial resultsare intimated 
to BSE Limited (BSE) where the Company’s securities is listed, immediately after the 
approval of the Board of directors and are simultaneously displayed in Company’s  
website www.elnettechnologies.com

b) Newspapers wherein results normally published: 

The Company’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual audited financial results are normally 
published in leading daily newspapers, viz. Business Standard (English-National daily 
newspaper) and Malai Sudar (vernacular newspaper-Tamil).

c) Website
The quarterly & annual financial results of company aredisplayed in a separate section called 
Financial Reports under head of “Investor Information” in the website of the Company i.e, 
www.elnettechnologies.com

d) Official New releases & other Communication
All other official news releases which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Regulation 46 
of SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are available on 
the website the Company www.elnettechnologies.com in separate categories.

e) Presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts
The Company has not made any Presentation made to investors or to the analysts during the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2020.
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9. GENRAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

a) Annual General Meeting

Date and time 28th September, 2020 at 12.30 pm

Mode Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means

Book Closure Date Tuesday, 22nd Sep, 2020 to Monday, 28th Sep,2020  
(both days inclusive)

b) Financial year

The financial year of the Company is 1st April to 31st March.

Calendar of financial year 2019-20

The Company follows April-March as the financial year. The meetings of Board of Directorsfor 
approval of Quarterly/Half yearly/Annual financial results during the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2020 were held on the following dates.

First Quarter Results 9th Aug, 2019

Second Quarter and Half yearly Results 12th Nov, 2019

Third Quarter Results 13th Feb, 2020

Fourth Quarter and Annual Results 29th June,2020

Tentative Calendar for financial year 2020-21

The tentative dates of meeting of Board of Directors for consideration of Quarterly/Half yearly/
Annually financial results inter alia with other business of the Company for the financial year 
2020-21 are as follows:

First Quarter Results Not later than 15th Sep, 2020

Second Quarter and Half yearly Results Not later than 14th Nov, 2020

Third Quarter Results Not later than 14th Feb, 2021

Fourth Quarter and Annual Results Not later than 30th May, 2021
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c) Dividend payment date
Payment of Dividend during the financial year 2019-20

Date of declaration 9th August, 2019 
Rate of dividend 15%
Book Closure Date Saturday, 3rd August, 2019 to Friday, 9th August, 2019  

(both days inclusive)
Date of payment of dividend 27th Aug, 2019
Amount of dividend paid Rs.1.50 per equity shares of face value Rs. 10/- each

Proposed Dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020.
Date of declaration 28th Sep, 2020 
Rate of dividend 12% 
Book Closure Date Tuesday, 22nd Sep, 2020 to Monday, 28th Sep,2020  

(both days inclusive)
Date of payment of dividend The proposed dividend, if so approved, will be paid within the 

timeline with reference to the MCA circular dated 5th May, 
2020 from the date of declaration to the members whose 
name appears on the Register of Members at end of the day 
on 21st Sep, 2020

Amount of dividend to be 
paid

Rs. 1.20 per share

d) Details of Stock Exchange and payment of listing fee

The equity securities of the company are listed in Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE Limited) 
andthe listing fee for the financial year 2019-20 was paid on 8th May, 2020.

e) Stock Code
BSE- 517477

f) Market price data- high, low during each month in the previous financial year 
(Share Price in Rs.)

MONTH HIGH LOW VOUME
Apr-19 103.80 90.00 5171
May-19 109.80 92.25 9693
Jun-19 106.00 96.25 7079
Jul-19 100.85 92.25 9472
Aug-19 103.00 92.25 11044
Sep-19 103.75 96.40 12974
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Oct-19 103.35 91.90 15363
Nov-19 119.75 90.50 47236
Dec-19 114.75 102.30 22986
Jan-20 114.90 102.05 12696
Feb-20 114.75 98.00 14919
Mar-20 107.50 66.25 44326

g) Performance in comparison to broad-based indices 

BSE- SENSEX

h) The securities of the Company was not suspended from trading during the financial year. 
Hence there is no explanation required to be provided in the Board’s Report.

i) Registers to issue and share transfer Agent

Cameo Corporate Services Ltd  
“Subramanian Building”  
# 1, Club House Road  
Chennai 600 002. 
Ph:-044 - 2846 0390 (5 lines) 
Fax:-044 - 2846 0129

j) Share transfer system

The majority of Company’s equity shares i.e., 96.31% are in demat format as on 31st March, 
2020. These shares can be transferred through the depositories viz., i.e. National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL) without the 
Company’s involvement. 
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The Board has delegated the powers to approve share transfers, transmissions, by constituting 
a Share Transfer Committee. During the financial year, transfer of shares in physical form was 
processed within 15 days from the date of receipt of transfer request, provided the documents 
are complete in all respects. All transfers was first processed by the Transfer Agent and 
submitted thereafter to the Company for approval.The physical share transfer, transmissions 
processed based on number of requests received.The shares lodged for transfers processed 
and registered as per the requirements of the regulations.

Pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company obtains certificates from the Practicing Company 
Secretarieson a half yearly basis to the effect that all the transfers are completed within 
the statutory stipulated period. A copy of the certificate so received is submitted to Stock 
Exchangewhere the shares of the company are listed.

The transactions of the shares held in Demat and Physical form are handled by the Company’s 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent “Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.”

k) Distribution of shareholdingas on 31st March, 2020

Range
No. of 

Shareholders
% of Total 

Shareholders
No. of Shares

% of Total 
Share Capital

1-100 3445 69.2601 216713 5.4178
101-500 1143 22.9794 306901 7.6725
501-1000 187 3.7595 145840 3.6459
1001-2000 92 1.8496 134943 3.3735
2001-3000 36 0.7237 87471 2.1867
3001-4000 20 0.4020 70133 1.7533
4001-5000 14 0.2814 66251 1.6562

5001-10000 10 0.2010 79446 1.9861
Above 10000 27 0.5428 2892309 72.3075

Total 4974 100.0000 4000007 100.0000

Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March 2020

Category No. of Shares Percentage
Promoters
Promoters 2113861 52.85

Subtotal (A) 2113861 52.85
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Category No. of Shares Percentage
NRIs/OCBs
Foreign Company 0 0.00
Foreign Nationals 0 0.00
Non Resident Indians 30729 0.77
Foreign Institutional Investors 0 0.00
Foreign Portfolio Investor 0 0.00

Subtotal (B) 30729 0.77
Others
Clearing Members 1029 0.03
Private Corporate Bodies 27237 0.68
Mutual Funds 0 0.00
Financial Institutions (Bank) 0 0.00
Public 1673038 41.83
HUF 66985 1.67
IEPF 87128 2.18

Subtotal (C) 1855417 46.39
Total (A+B+C) 4000007 100.00

l) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

Physical/ NSDL/ CDSL/Summary Report as on 31st March, 2020, representing 96.53% oftotal 
Equity Share Capital of the Company held in dematerialized form is as below

As on 31st March, 2020 As on 31st March, 2019
Mode of holding No. of Shares % to Equity No. of Shares % to Equity
NSDL 30,38,872 75.97 33,72,097 84.30
CDSL 8,22,363 20.56 4,80,538 12.01
PHYSICAL 1,38,772 3.47 1,47,372 3.68
TOTAL 40,00,007 100.00 40,00,007 100.00

m) Outstanding Debt/ GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, 
conversion date and likely impact on equity

The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs /Warrants or any convertible instruments as 
on date.

n) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

The Company does not have exposure to foreign exchange risk.

o) Plant location

Not Applicable
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p) Address for correspondence

Registered Office 
Elnet Software City, 
TS 140, Block No.2 & 9, Rajiv Gandhi Salai, Taramani, Chennai-600113.

Contact details of Designated Official for assisting & handling Investor Grievances

Mr. T. Joswa Johnson 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Contact No. : 91 - 44 - 2254 1098 / 2254 1337 / 2254 1791; 
Fax No. : 91 - 44 - 2254 1955; E-mail: elnetcity@gmail.com

List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during 
the relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit 
programme or any scheme or proposal of the listed entity involving mobilization of 
funds, whether in India or abroad

The company has not invested in any debt instruments or any fixed deposit programmeor 
any scheme or proposal involving mobilization of funds whether in India or abroad. Hence the 
disclosure is not applicable.

TRANSFERS TO THE INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

Pursuant to section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“The 
Rules”), all unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred by the Company to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government, 
after completion of seven consecutive years from the date of transfer to unpaiddividend 
account. Further, according to the Rules, the shares in respect of which dividend has not been 
paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to the demat 
account of IEPF Authority.

Transfer of Unpaid/ Unclaimed Dividend Amount/ Shares pertaining to the dividend 
declared financial year ended 31st March, 2013 to Investor Education and Protection 
Fund (IEPF)

The due date for transfer of unpaid/unclaimed dividend amount and corresponding shares 
for the dividend declared during the financial year ended 31st March, 2013 is 22nd July, 
2020. In compliance with the provision, during the financial year 2020-2021 the Company had 
sent intimation to the eligible shareholders and advertised in the newspaper seeking action 
from the shareholders who have not claimed their dividends for seven consecutive years or 
more for the dividend declared during the financial year ended 31st March, 2013. Accordingly, 
after the expiry of due date for claiming the unpaid/ unclaimed dividend, the Company has 
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transfered such unpaid or unclaimed dividends and also the corresponding shares for the 
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2013 to IEPF authority.

Details of shares/shareholders in respect of which dividend has not been claimed, was also 
updated in the website of the company www.elnettechnologies.com. (Investors/Compliances/
unpaid dividend data/year 2020). 

Members/claimants whose shares, and/or unclaimed dividend, have been transferred to the 
IEPF Demat Account or the Fund, as the case may be, may claim the shares or apply for 
refund of dividend by making an application to the IEPF Authority in Form IEPF-5 (available 
on http://www.iepf.gov.in) along with requisite fee as decided by the IEPF Authority from time 
to time. The Member/claimant can file only one consolidated claim in a Financial Year as per 
the IEPF Rules.

10. OTHER DISCLOSURES:

a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have 
potential conflict with the interests of Company at large

During the year, the Company had not entered into any transaction of a material nature with 
any of the related parties which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company 
at large.

There have been no materially significant related party transactions with the company’s 
promoters, directors, the management, their subsidiaries or relatives which may have potential 
conflict with the interests of the company at large. The necessary disclosures regarding 
thetransactions are given in the notes to accounts. The Company has also formulated a 
policy on dealing with the Related Party Transactions and necessary approval of the audit 
committee and Board of directors are taken wherever required in accordance with the Policy.

None of the transactions with any of the related parties were in conflict with the interests ofthe 
company. A statement of related party transaction is furnished under Item No. 39 of Notes on 
Accounts.

b)	 Details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, and strictures imposed 
on the listed entity by stock exchange or the board or any statutory authority, on any 
matter related to capital markets, during the last three years

There have been no instances of non-compliances by the Company and no penalties and /or 
strictures have been imposed by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on any 
matter related to capital markets during the last three years.
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c)	 Establishment of vigil mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy
The company has an established mechanism for Directors / Employees to report concerns 
about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the code of conductor ethics 
policy. It also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of directors/employees 
who avail of the mechanism. The company affirms that no personnel has been denied access 
to the audit committee. The Company has formulated a Policy of Vigil Mechanism and 
has established a mechanism that any personnel may raise Reportable Matters.The Vigil 
Mechanism Policy shall be viewed at our company’s website: www.elnettechnologies.com. 
All suspected violations and Reportable Matters can be reported to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee at e-mail ID elnetcity@gmail.com.The key directions/actions will be informed to 
the Managing Director of the Company.

d)	 Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-
mandatoryrequirements.
The Company has fully complied with all the mandatory requirements and has adopted certain 
non-mandatory requirements as prescribed in Part-E of Schedule II to the Regulation 27 of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

i)	 The Board
	 The Company is having a non-executive chairperson and he is not claiming any 

reimbursement of expenses incurred in the performance of his duties.
ii)	 Shareholders Rights
	 Pursuant to regulations of SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 as the company’s quarterly/half yearly/annual financial results are 
published in an English newspaper having wide circulation all over India and in Tamil 
newspaper widely circulated in Chennai, the company is not sending the same to the 
shareholders of the company individually. The same will be hosted in the company’s 
website www.elnettechnologies.com within the stipulated time.

iii)	 Modified opinion(s) in audit report.
	 The financial statement of the company is having an unmodified audit opinion.
iv)	 Separate posts of chairperson and chief executive officer
	 Mr. M. Vijayakumar IAS, is the Chairman and Non-executive director of the company. The 

Company is having a Managing director as one of the Key Managerial Personnel. The 
appointment of Chief Executive Officer of the company does not arise.

v)	 Reporting of internal auditor
	 The Internal auditor is directly reporting to the audit committee covering the scope of 

Internal Audit regarding Revenue recognition, Taxation (Direct & Indirect tax), statutory 
payment, Cash & Bank, General Ledger Review.
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e)	 Weblink where the policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiary is available

The Company does not have any material subsidiary. Hence the necessity for complying with 
respect to framing a policy for determining the material subsidiary does not arise.

f)	 Weblink where the Policy on dealing with related party transactions is available

The Policy on dealing with related party transactions is available in our Company’s website 
www.elnettechnologies.com

g)	 Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities.

Not applicable

h)	 Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 
institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A).

Not applicable

i) Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary regarding disqualification of Directors

A Company Secretary in practice has certified that none of Directors on the Board of Directors 
of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
directors by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate affairs or any statutory authorities as on 31st 
March, 2020.

The certificate received from Practicing Company Secretary is enclosed with this report as 
Annexure.

j)	 Details of recommendations of Committees which were not accepted by the board 
along with reasons.

The Audit Committee generally makes certain recommendations to the Board of Directors of 
the Company at their meetings held to consider any financial results (Unaudited and Audited) 
and such other matters placed before the Audit Committee as per the Companies Act2013 
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 from time to 
time. During the year the Board of Directors has considered allthe recommendations made 
by the Audit Committee and has accepted and carried on the recommendations suggested 
by the Committee to its satisfaction. Hence there are no recommendations unaccepted by the 
Board of Directors of the Company during the year.

k)	 Total fees paid for all services on consolidated basis to statutory auditors and their 
network firms.

During the year the company has paid Rs.6 lacs to statutory auditors as a consolidated pay 
for the services rendered. There was no payment to network entities in which the statutory 
auditors of the company is taking part.
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l)	 Disclosure in relation to the Sexual harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibitionand Redressal) Act, 2013
The Company has Internal Complaints Committees as required under the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company firmly provides a safe, supportive and friendly workplace environment – a 
workplace where our values come to life through the underlying behaviours. Positive workplace 
environment and a great employee experience are integral parts of our culture.

During the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the provisions of Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013.

Details Status
Number of complaints filed during the financial year Nil
Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year Nil
Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year Nil

11.	 Non compliance of any requirement of S. No 2 to 10 of schedule V of Regulation 34 
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
The Company has complied with all the requirement of corporate governance report whichis 
mentioned in S. No 2 to 10 of Schedule V of Regulation 34 ofSEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015.

12.	 The corporate governance report has disclosed the extent to which the discretionary 
requirements as specified in Part E of the Schedule II to the Regulation 27 of the 
SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
Refer 10 (d) above

13.	 The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance requirements as 
specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 
46 of the Listing Regulations.
Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account:
Based on the shareholding pattern received from Registrar and Share transfer Agent for 
everyquarter during the financial year, as on March 31, 2020 there are no shares lying in the 
demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account.

Declaration signed by the Managing Director stating that the members of board of 
directors and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code 
of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management is provided below.

Compliance certificate from Practicing Company Secretaries regarding complianceof 
conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to the Boards Report as Annexure-VI.



81

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

As required under Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the CEO/CFO Certification 
on financial statements of the company for the financial year ended 31st March 2020 signed 
by Mrs. Unnamalai Thiagarajan, Managing Director and Mrs. E. Kamakshi, CFO was placed 
before the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on Monday, 29th June, 
2020 and enclosed as Annexure to this Annual Report. 

GREEN INITIATIVE IN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Rule 11 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, permits circulation of Annual Report 
toshareholders through electronic means to such of themembers whose e-mail addresses 
are registered with NSDL or CDSL or the shareholders who have registered their E-mail ID 
with the Company to receive the documents in electronic form and physical copies to those 
shareholders whose e-mail IDs have not been either registered with the Company or with the 
depositories.

To support this green initiative of the Government,Members are requested to register their 
e-mailaddresses, with the DPs, in case shares are held indematerialized form and with the 
Share Transfer Agent, in case the sharesare held in physical form and also intimate changes,if 
any, in their registered e-mail addresses to the Company / DPs, from time to time.

FORMAT OF THE INITIAL DISCLOSURE TO BE MADE BY AN ENTITY IDENTIFIED AS A 
LARGE CORPORATE

S No. Particulars Details
1 Name of the company ELNET TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
2 CIN L72300TN1990PLC019459
3 Outstanding borrowing of company as on 

31st March 2020 (in cr.)
NIL

4 Highest Credit Rating during the previous 
financial year 

NA

5 Name of the Credit Rating Agency issuing the 
Credit Rating assigning the Highest rating

NA

6 Name of Stock Exchange in which the fine 
shall be paid, in case of shortfall in the 
required borrowing under the framework

BSE limited

We confirm that we are not a large corporate as per the applicability criteria given under the 
SEBI circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated November 26, 2018.

T. Joswa Johnson	 E. Kamakshi 
Company Secretary	 Chief Financial officer 
044 - 2254 1098	 044 - 2254 1098 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION
[Under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Board of Directors 
Elnet Software City, 
TS 140, Block No.2 & 9, 
Rajiv Gandhi Salai, Taramani, 
Chennai – 600 113

We certify that 

A.	 We have reviewed the financial statements and cash flow statement for the year ended 
31st March, 2020 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1.	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 
fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

2.	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs 
and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and 
regulations;

B.	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 
Company during the year ended 31st March, 2020 which is fraudulent, illegal or violative 
of the Company’s code of conduct;

C.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we 
have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining 
to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, 
deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal controls, if any, of which we are 
aware of and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D.	 We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee -

1)	 Significant changes ininternal control over the financial reporting during the year 
ended 31st March, 2020

2)	 Significant changes in accounting policies during year ended 31st March, 2020and 
that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

3)	 Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement 
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 
Company’s internal control system over the financial reporting.

Place	 :	 Chennai	 Unnamalai Thiagarajan	  E. Kamakshi 
Date	 :	 29th June, 2020	 Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI  

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Board of Directors 
ELNET TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 
TS 140 Block 2 & 9, CPT Road, Taramani, Chennai - 600 113.

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from 
the Directors of ELNET TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED having CIN L72300TN1990PLC019459 
and having registered office at TS 140, BLOCK 2 & 9, CPT ROAD, TARAMANI, CHENNAI – 
600113. (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for 
the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule 
V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of my/our information and according to the verifications (including 
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 
necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers and considering the 
relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of 
India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 Pandemic, We hereby certify that none of 
the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 
31st March, 2020 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 

S  
No.

NAME OF DIRECTOR DIN DATE OF APPOINTMENT 
IN COMPANY*

1 Mr. Ravi Janakiraman 00042953 30-09-2003
2 Mr.Chakkolath Ramachandran 00050893 08-08-2003
3 Mr.Ganapathi Ramachandran 00103623 08-08-2003
4 Mrs.Unnamalai Thiagarajan 00203154 08-08-2003
5 Mr.Karthik Seshadri Harikrishnan 00203319 08-08-2003
6 Mr.Gangadaran Chellakrishna 01036398 22-04-2014
7 Mr.Govindasamy Senrayaperumal 01458026 25-10-2006
8 Mr.Kadher Mohideen Kasim 02959356 27-01-2010
9 Mr.Ammoor Periyan Radhakrishnan 03642690 02-03-2019
10 Mr.Nithiyanandan Radhakrishnan Parthasarathy 07721702 18-03-2020
11 Mr.Vijayakumar Mariappan 08128389 28-05-2018
12 Mr.Srivathsa Desikan 08205725 09-08-2018

*The date of appointment is as per the MCA portal.
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Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For BP & Associates 
Company Secretaries

Place	 :	 Chennai	 C Prabhakar 
Date	 :	 29th June, 2020	 Partner 

M No: 30433 
CP No: 11033 

UDIN : A030433B000403806

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,

The Members, 
ELNET TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED, 
TS 140 Block 2 & 9, CPT Road,  
Taramani, Chennai - 600 113.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by ELNET TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 
(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Elnet Technologies Limited’s books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information 
provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct 
of secretarial audit and as per the explanations given to us and the representations made by 
the management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 
pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 generally complied with the statutory 
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provisions listed hereunder and also that the company has proper board processes and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
made available to us and maintained by Elnet Technologies Limited for the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the applicable provisions of: 

i.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii.	 The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

iii.	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
CommercialBorrowings;

v.	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

a.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015;

c.	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time to time;

d.	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

e.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

f.	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 
2018;

vi.	 The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013;

vii.	 vii.	Other laws applicable to the Company as per the representations made by the 
Management;

	 With respect to Fiscal laws such as Income Tax and Goods and Service Tax we have 
reviewed the systems and mechanisms established by the Company for ensuring 
compliances under various acts and based on the information and explanation provided 
to us by the management and officers of the company and also on verification of 
compliance reports taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, we report 
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that adequate systems are in place to monitor and ensure compliance of fiscal laws as 
mentioned above.

	 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)	 i.	 Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of 
Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’ respectively, issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India have been generally complied with.

	 During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

	 During the period under review there were no events which required specific compliance 
of the provisions of
i.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008;
ii.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009;
iii.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 

1998;
We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with the proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in 
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice has been given to all directors to schedule the board meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on the agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

We report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the following significant events have taken 
place:

1.	 RECONSTITUTION OF BOARD:

During the year, the Shareholders of the Company in their 28th Annual General Meeting 
held on 09th August, 2019 approved the below transactions:

(i)	 Mr. M. Vijayakumar IAS., (DIN:08128389), appointed as Chairman and Non-Executive 
Director of the Company,who was appointed as Non-Executive Additional Director of 
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the Company by the Board of Directors and its meeting dated 07th February, 2019.
(ii)	 Mr. R. Madhavan., (DIN:02345801) appointed as Non-Executive Director of the 

Company, who was appointed as Non-executive Additional Director of the Company 
by the Board of Directors and its meeting dated 07th February, 2019.

(iii)	 Mr. N. Srivathsa Desikan., (DIN:08205725) appointed as Non-Executive Director 
of the Company, who was appointed as Non-executive Additional Director of the 
Company by the Board of Directors and its meeting dated 07th February, 2019.

(iv)	 Re-appointment of Independent Directors of the Company of Mr.G. Chellakrishna., 
(DIN:01036398) w.e.f. 23rd April, 2019 and Mr. R. Ganapathi., (DIN:00103623),  
Mr. H Karthik Seshadri.,(DIN: 00203319) and K Kasim IPS., (RETD.,) (DIN:02959356) 
for a second term of 5 (five) years w.e.f. 30th July, 2019.

(v)	 Mr. G. Senrayaperumal., (DIN:01458026) Re-appointed as Non-Executive 
Independent Director of the Company for a second term of 5 (five) years w.e.f. 30th 
July, 2019 and Pursuant to Regulation 17(1) (A) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 the Shareholders of the 
Company has approved the continuation of Directorship on such attaining the age of 
75 years during this second term of appointment.

(vi)	 Mr.A.P Radhakrishnan (DIN:03642690)appointed as Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company to hold office for the First term of 5 (Five) Consecutive years 
with effect from 2nd March, 2019.

2.	 RESIGNATION OF MR. R. MADHAVAN, NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE 
COMPANY.

Mr. R. Madhavan.,(DIN:02345801) was resigned as Non- Executive Director of the Company 
with effect from 24thFebruary, 2020.

3.	 APPOINTMENT OF MR. P. R NITHIYANANDAN, NON-EXECUTIVE ADDITIONAL 
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

Mr. P.R. Nithiyanandan (DIN: 07721702) was appointed as Non-Executive Additional Director 
of the Company with effect from 18th March, 2020.

For BP & Associates 
Company Secretaries

Date	 :	 29th June 2020	 C. Prabhakar 
Place	 :	 Chennai	 Partner 

M. No: 30433 
C.P. No: 11033 

UDIN: A030433B000403731
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‘ANNEXURE A’

To 

The Members, 
ELNET TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED, 
TS 140 BLOCK 2 & 9,CPT ROAD 
TARAMANI, CHENNAI - 600113

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our 
audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 
The verification was done on a test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 
of Account of the company.

4.	 Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was 
limited to the verification of procedures on a test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the company.

For BP & Associates 
Company Secretaries

Date	 :	 29th June, 2020	 C. Prabhakar 
Place	 :	 Chennai	 Partner 

M. No: 30433 
C.P. No: 11033 

UDIN: A030433B000403731
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Elnet Technologies Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Elnet Technologies Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the statement of Profit and 
Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2020, and profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 41 to the financial statements which states that the management 
has made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s operations, financial 
performance and position as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020 and has concluded that 
there is no impact which is required to be recognised in the financial statements. Accordingly, 
no adjustments have been made to the financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect ofthis matter.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Recognition, Valuation and Presentation of provision and contingent liabilities:

Refer Note 35(ii) to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2020.

The claims made by Electronics Corporation of Tamilnadu Limited (ELCOT) during the year 
2009-10 and 2017-18 against the Company have been disclosed as Contingent Liability by 
the Company which is amounting to Rs 2,027 Lakhs. This is on account of difference in the 
computation of Lease Rent for the period from February 14, 1991 to February 14, 1999 and 
interest on delayed payment of lease rent for the period May 18, 2000 uptil August 8, 2017. 

As there is potential exposure of the Company, the assessment of the probability of occurrence, 
outflow, if any, and adequate disclosure requirements, involves significant judgement by the 
management.

Due to the level of judgement relating to recognition, valuation and presentation of provision 
and contingent liabilities, this is considered to be a key audit matter.

How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedure in respect of this area included:

•	 Reviewed the process of identification and valuation implemented by the management for 
the said claims through discussion with legal and finance departments of the Company 
and discussed the status of ongoing and potential legal matters. 

•	 Discussion with the management on the developments relating to this claim, if any, during 
the year. 

•	 Evaluated the management’s assessment about the outcome of the dispute.

•	 Reviewed the legal opinion obtained, third party correspondence and reports in the 
previous year with respect to the matter.

•	 Assessed the reasonableness of management’s judgement w.r.t to likelihood of outflow.

•	 Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures made in the notes to financial statement.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Management report, Chairman’s 
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statement, Director’s report etc but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financialstatements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
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auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the 
Financial Statements

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we 
give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order, to the extent applicable.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so faras it appears from our examination of those books.

(c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account.

(d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 
31,2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified 
as on March 31,2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) 
of the Act.

(f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

(g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements – Refer Note 35 to the financial statements; 

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company

3.	 As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinion, according to 
information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its 
directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section 197 of the Act and the rules 
thereunder.

For MSKA & Associates  
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Place	 :	 Chennai	 Geetha Jeyakumar 
Date	 :	 29th June, 2020	 Partner 

Membership No.: 029409 
UDIN : 20029409AAAAFH9311 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON 
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ELNET TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable,related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

For MSKA & Associates  
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Place	 :	 Chennai	 Geetha Jeyakumar 
Date	 :	 29th June, 2020	 Partner 

Membership No.: 029409 
UDIN : 20029409AAAAFH9311
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ELNET TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2020

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in 
the Independent Auditors’ Report] 

i.	 (a)	The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment).

	 (b)	All the fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment) have not been physically verified 
by the management during the year but there is a regular programme of verification 
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are 
held in the name of the Company. 

ii.	 The Company is involved in the business of rendering services. Accordingly, the provisions 
stated in paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iii.	 The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships (LLP) or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the provisions 
stated in paragraph 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other 
person in whom the director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of section 
185 of the Act and the Company has not made investments through more than two layers 
of investment companies in accordance with the provisions of section 186 of the Act. 
Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

v.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 
and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under.

vi.	 The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the 
Company as the Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost 
records for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in 
paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.



97

vii.	 (a)	According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing with 
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ 
state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other statutory dues 
applicable to it.

	 (b)	According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and 
service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period 
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax,cess 
and any other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii.	 The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks, 
government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, the provision stated in 
paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix.	 The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions 
stated in paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

x.	 During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, 
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across 
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or 
employees. 

xi.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has paid or provided for managerial 
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of 
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

xii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company. 

xiii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance 
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards. 
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xiv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment 
or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. 
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company. 

xv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 
3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xvi.	 In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 
clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

For MSKA & Associates  
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Place	 :	 Chennai	 Geetha Jeyakumar 
Date	 :	 29th June, 2020	 Partner 

Membership No.: 029409 
UDIN : 20029409AAAAFH9311
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ELNET TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f)under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in 
the Independent Auditors’ Report] 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Elnet 
Technologies Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of 
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) (the “Guidance Note”). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and 
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 



100

TWENTY NINTH Annual REPORT 2019 - 20

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
thefinancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control with reference to 
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial 
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control 
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For MSKA & Associates  
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Place	 :	 Chennai	 Geetha Jeyakumar 
Date	 :	 29th June, 2020	 Partner 

Membership No.: 029409 
UDIN : 20029409AAAAFH9311
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020 
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes  As at March 
31, 2020

 As at March 
31, 2019

ASSETS
Non-current assets
	 Property, plant and equipment 4  2,688.54  2,562.52 
	 Capital work in progress 5  -    58.79 
	 Financial assets
		  Investments 6  311.30  803.14 
		  Other financial assets 7  4,492.00  1,039.50 
	 Income Tax Assets (Net) 8  75.82  74.64 
	 Deferred tax asset (net) 19  7.26  -   
	 Other Non Current Assets 9  17.20  192.04 
	 Total non-current assets  7,592.12  4,730.63 
Current assets
	 Financial assets
		  Trade receivables 10  190.67  208.56 
		  Cash and cash equivalents 11  702.38  155.33 
		  Bank balances other than above 12  1,842.53  4,218.13 
		  Other financial assets 13  145.64  100.20 
	 Other current assets 14  65.11  64.30 
	 Total current assets  2,946.33  4,746.52 

Total Assets  10,538.45  9,477.15 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
	 Equity share capital 15  400.00  400.00 
	 Other equity 16  8,134.49  7,121.15 
Total equity  8,534.49  7,521.15 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
	 Financial liabilities
		  Other financial liabilities 17  1,048.19  1,096.20 
	 Provisions 18  8.37  5.16 
	 Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 19  -    22.92 
Total non-current liabilities  1,056.56  1,124.28 
Current liabilities
	 Financial liabilities
		  Borrowings 20  426.34  426.34 
		  Trade payables 21
			   Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  6.25  8.06 
			   Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises  
			   and small enterprises  19.90  12.70 

		  Other financial liabilities 22  446.11  354.91 
		  Provisions 23  0.94  0.76 
	 Other current liabilities 24  47.85  28.95 
Total current liabilities  947.40  831.72 

Total liabilities  2,003.96  1,956.00 
Total Equity and Liabilities  10,538.45  9,477.15 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board As per our Report of even date
M. Vijayakumar IAS, 
Chairman 
(DIN : 08128389)

Unnamalai Thiagarajan  
Managing Director 
(DIN : 00203154)

G. Chellakrishna 
Independent Director 
(DIN : 01036398)

For MSKA & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Place : Chennai 
Date : 29th June, 2020

E. Kamakshi 
Chief Financial Officer

T. Joswa Johnson 
Company Secretary

Geetha Jeyakumar 
Partner 
Membership No: 029409
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board As per our Report of even date
M. Vijayakumar IAS, 
Chairman 
(DIN : 08128389)

Unnamalai Thiagarajan  
Managing Director 
(DIN : 00203154)

G. Chellakrishna 
Independent Director 
(DIN : 01036398)

For MSKA & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Place : Chennai 
Date : 29th June, 2020

E. Kamakshi 
Chief Financial Officer

T. Joswa Johnson 
Company Secretary

Geetha Jeyakumar 
Partner 
Membership No: 029409

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020 
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes
For the year 
ended March  

31, 2020

 For the year 
ended March 

31, 2019

A Income

Revenue from operations 25  2,403.69  2,104.45 

Other income 26  508.14  444.24 

Total income  2,911.83  2,548.69 

B Expenses

Employee benefits expense 27  117.83  121.80 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 28  387.73  331.77 

Other expenses 29  852.52  859.01 

Finance costs 30  86.64  69.82 

Total expenses  1,444.72  1,382.40 

C Profit before tax  1,467.11  1,166.29 

Income tax expense 31

	 Current tax  411.10  355.00 

	 Deferred tax  (28.92)  (29.89)

D Profit for the year  1,084.93  841.18 

E Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

	 Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations  0.79  0.97 

	 Effect of measuring investments at fair value  1.21  (34.19)

	 Income tax relating to these items  (1.26)  9.67 

Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year, net of tax  0.74  (23.55)

F Total comprehensive income for the year  1,085.67  817.63 

Earnings per share 32

Basic earnings per share  27.12  21.03 

Diluted earnings per share  27.12  21.03 
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
 For the year 
ended March 

31, 2020

 For the year 
ended March 

31, 2019
Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit before income tax  1,467.11  1,166.29 
Adjustments for
	 Depreciation and amortisation expense  387.73  331.77 
	 (Profit)/Loss on sale of fixed asset  (0.96)  3.46 
	 Income on redemption of investment  (8.31)  -   
	 Fair value change of investments through profit and loss  -    (30.26)
	 Provision/ (Reversal) for Employee Benefits  2.60  (3.83)
	 Provision for doubtful debts  -    0.46 
	 Interest Income on deposits  (496.68)  (376.32)
	 Finance costs  86.64  69.82 

 1,438.13  1,161.39 
Change in operating assets and liabilities
	 (Increase)/ decrease in Other financial assets  (3,277.67)  (86.79)
	 (Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables  17.89  27.42 
	 (Increase)/ decrease in Other assets  (0.81)  (22.22)
	 Increase/ (decrease) in provisions and other liabilities  63.96  (58.50)
	 Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables  5.40  2.64 
Cash generated from operations  (1,753.10)  1,023.93 
Less : Income taxes paid (net of refunds)  (412.68)  (353.71)
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities (A)  (2,165.78)  670.22 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
	 Acquisition of property plant and equipment and Capital work-in-progress  (455.71)  (671.26)
	 Proceeds on redemption of investments  501.36  -   
	 Proceeds from disposal of Property, plant and equipment and Capital work-in-progress  1.75  -   
	 Maturity / (Investments in)  fixed deposits with banks more than 3 months  2,375.60  (620.89)
	 Interest Received on Deposits  362.16  424.49 
Net cash (used in) / from investing activities (B)  2,785.16  (867.66)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
	 Dividend paid  (60.00)  (60.00)
	 Tax on dividend  (12.33)  (12.33)
Net cash used in financing activities (C)  (72.33)  (72.33)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  547.05  (269.77)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year  155.33  425.10 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  702.38  155.33 
Notes: 
1.	 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method  
	 prescribed in Ind AS 7 “Cash Flow Statements”.
2. Components of cash and cash equivalents
	 Balances with banks
	  - In current accounts  351.66  54.90 
	  - In Deposit Account (maturing within 3 months)  350.00  100.00 
	 Cash on hand  0.72  0.43 

 702.38  155.33 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board As per our Report of even date
M. Vijayakumar IAS, 
Chairman 
(DIN : 08128389)

Unnamalai Thiagarajan  
Managing Director 
(DIN : 00203154)

G. Chellakrishna 
Independent Director 
(DIN : 01036398)

For MSKA & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Place : Chennai 
Date : 29th June, 2020

E. Kamakshi 
Chief Financial Officer

T. Joswa Johnson 
Company Secretary

Geetha Jeyakumar 
Partner 
Membership No: 029409



106

TWENTY NINTH Annual REPORT 2019 - 20

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1	 Corporate Information
Elnet Technologies Limited (ETL) was incorporated in August 1990 as a Public Limited 
Company which is situated in the IT corridor, Rajiv Gandhi Salai, Taramani, Chennai. ETL’s 
core competence is to develop and manage Software Technology Park. ETL has pioneered the 
concept of Software Technology Park in India and also providing infrastructure to Information 
Technology and Information technology enabled services industry companies.

2	 Basis of preparation of financial statements
Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) notified under the Section 133 of the 2013 Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 and other relevant provisions of the 2013 Act.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting 
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change 
in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Basis of preparation and presentation
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following 
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

a)	 Derivative financial instruments

b)	 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy 
regarding financial instruments)

Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial 
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is 
recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s 
functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest 
lakhs (up to two decimals). 
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The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on June 
29, 2020.

2.1	 Critical accounting estimates and management judgments

The management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of financial statements 
are prudent and reasonable.

Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements used in 
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised 
in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

The residual values and estimated useful life of PPE are assessed by the technical team at 
each reporting date by taking into account the nature of asset, the estimated usage of the 
asset, the operating condition of the asset, past history of replacement and maintenance 
support. Upon review, the management accepts the assigned useful life and residual value 
for computation of depreciation/amortisation. Also, management judgement is exercised for 
classifying the asset as investment properties or vice versa.

Current tax

Calculations of income taxes for the current period are done based on applicable tax laws and 
management’s judgement by evaluating positions taken in tax returns and interpretations of 
relevant provisions of law.

Deferred Tax Assets

Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at 
each reporting date to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be retained / 
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with 
future tax planning strategies. 

Fair value

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments 
where active market quotes are not available. In applying the valuation techniques, 
management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions 
that are, as far as possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would 
use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not observable, management uses its 
best estimate about the assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates 
may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the 
reporting date.
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Impairment of Trade Receivables

The impairment for trade receivables are done based on assumptions about risk of default 
and expected loss rates. The assumptions, selection of inputs for calculation of impairment 
are based on management judgement considering the past history, market conditions and 
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting date.

Impairment of Non-financial assets (Property, Plant and Equipment) 

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its 
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in 
use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding 
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices 
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a 
DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budgets. The recoverable amount is sensitive 
to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows 
and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to 
goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Company.

Defined Benefit Plans and Other long term benefits

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term benefits, and the present value of such 
obligation are determined by the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial valuation involves 
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future. Management 
believes that the assumptions used by the actuary in determination of the discount rate, future 
salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rates are reasonable. Due to the complexities 
involved in the valuation and its long term nature, this obligation is highly sensitive to changes 
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

3	 Significant Accounting Policies

a)	 Current versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s 
normal operating cycle and other criteria set-out in the Act. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are classified as non-current assets and non-current liabilities, as the case may be.

b)	 Fair value measurement

The Company has applied the fair value measurement wherever necessitated at each 
reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either:
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i) 	 In the principal market for the asset or liability;

ii) 	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non - financial asset takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and the best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 : Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, 
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by 
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company has designated the respective team leads to determine the policies and 
procedures for both recurring and non - recurring fair value measurement. External valuers are 
involved, wherever necessary with the approval of Company’s board of directors. Selection 
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional 
standards are maintained. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosure, the Company has determined classes of assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risk of the asset or liability and the level 
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. The component wise fair value measurement 
is disclosed in the relevant notes.
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c)	 Revenue Recognition

Sale of services
Income from sale of services, which comprise of providing complete infrastructure services 
required to run, maintain, manage and administer software technology park housing 
sophisticated modules with infrastructure facilities required for Information Technology / 
Information technology enabled service industry, is recognised when the services are rendered 
as per the terms of the agreement and when no significant uncertainty as to its determination 
or realisation exists.

The modules are provided with complete facilities like air conditioning, uninterrupted power 
supply, generators etc. internet connectivity to offer seamless end to end infrastructure facility 
required by an Information Technology / Information technology enabled service industry 
Company to run its business. Elnet has also set up a permanent establishment to maintain 
these facilities for its customers to ensure uninterrupted business activities.

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over 
the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line 
with expected general inflation to compensate for the company’s expected inflationary cost 
increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue.

Interest Income
Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that 
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of 
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount 
of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the 
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the 
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and 
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Power Generation
Income from Windmill is taken on a monthly basis upon credit given by Tamil Nadu Electricity 
Board for units generated and Supplied.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the company’s right to receive dividend is established by 
the reporting date, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

d)	 Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the 
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cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs of a qualifying asset, 
if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required 
to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific 
useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of tangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet 
date, are disclosed as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of the 
tangible assets not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as capital 
work in progress.
Derecognition

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

e)	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful 
life on a straight line method. The depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or 
other amount substituted for cost. Residual value for all assets is considered as NIL.

Depreciation is provided on straight line method, over the useful lives specified in Schedule 
II to the Companies Act, 2013 except for the following items, where useful life estimated 
on technical assessment, past trends and differ from those provided in Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Assets Category Estimated useful life (in years)
Fit outs 4.00

Furniture and Fixtures 4.00

Multi Level Car Park 13.50

Office Equipments 4.00

Vehicle – Car 4.00

Depreciation for PPE on additions is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of such 
additions. For deletion/disposals, the depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis up to the 
date on which such assets have been discarded/sold. Additions to fixed assets, costing 5000 
each or less are fully depreciated retaining its residual value. 

The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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f)	 Financial Instruments
Financial assets
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value 
adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which 
are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial 
liabilities is described below:

Non-derivative financial assets
Subsequent measurement
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost, if both the following conditions are met:

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 
contractual cash flows, and

• Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified on the basis of their 
contractual cash flow characteristics and the entity’s business model of managing them.

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are accounted 
for at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 Separate Financial Statements.

Investments in other equity instruments
Investments in equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at fair value 
through profit or loss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Company makes an 
irrevocable choice upon initial recognition, on an instrument by instrument basis, to classify 
the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or fair value 
through profit or loss (FVTPL). Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not 
subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Company transfers the cumulative 
gain or loss within equity. Dividends on such investments are recognized in profit or loss 
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
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Investment in Mutual Funds

Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Classification Name of the financial asset
Amortised cost Trade receivables, Loans to employees, and others, deposits, interest 

receivable and other advances recoverable in cash.
FVTOCI Equity investments in companies other than Subsidiaries and 

associates if an option is exercised at the time of initial recognition.
FVTPL Other investments in equity instruments and mutual funds.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily de-recognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows 
from the asset have expired or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows 
from the asset.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL and as 
at amortised cost.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as 
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings 
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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Derivative financial instruments
The Company does not hold any derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange 
forward and options contracts.

Reclassification of financial assets
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. 
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity 
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a 
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those 
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior 
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal 
changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to 
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or 
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies 
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date 
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business 
model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including 
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities could not be measured based 
on quoted prices in active markets, management uses valuation techniques including the 
Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model, to determine its fair value. The inputs to these models 
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree 
of judgement is exercised in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of 
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 

g)	 Foreign currency transactions and translations
Transactions and balances
Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are 
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. However, for 
practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate, if the average approximates the actual 
rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the 
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising 
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
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Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary 
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates 
at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss 
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value 
gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, 
respectively).
h)	 Taxes
Current income tax
Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and 
current tax except the ones recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered or 
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are 
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the year end date. Current tax assets and 
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends 
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT’) credit entitlement is recognized as an asset only when and to 
the extent there is convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid during the specified 
period. In the year in which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the 
said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT 
credit entitlement. This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of 
MAT credit entitlement is written down to the extent it is not reasonably certain that normal 
income tax will be paid during the specified period.
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for 
taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on unrealised tax loss are recognized to the extent 
that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will be utilised against future taxable income. 
This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for 
significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused 
tax loss. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the 
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to 
items recognized outside statement of profit and loss is recognized outside statement of profit 
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
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Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations 
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where 
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same 
taxation authority.

i)	 Retirement and other employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
A liability is recognised for short-term employee benefit in the period the related service is 
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that 
service.

Defined contribution plans
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The 
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund and super 
annuation fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme 
as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable 
to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution 
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the 
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for 
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to 
the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a 
cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to 
be made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined 
benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, 
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on 
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are 
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained 
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified 
to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated absences

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and 
non-accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is 
determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance 
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sheet date using projected unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid / 
availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. 
Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the period in which 
the absences occur.

Other long term employee benefits

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the 
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in 
respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date.

j)	 Leases

The Company as a Lessor 

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. 
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as 
operating leases.

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land. The Company 
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for 
a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract 
involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic 
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the 
right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset 
(“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, 
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. 
For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as 
an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and 
lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

k)	 Impairment of non financial assets

The Company assesses at each year end whether there is any objective evidence that a non 
financial asset or a group of non financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the 
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount and the amount of impairment loss.
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An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and 
recoverable amount. Losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and reflected in 
an allowance account. When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of 
recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss 
subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring 
after the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is 
reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater 
of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest 
group of assets that generates cash in flows from continuing use that are largely independent 
of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).

l)	 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are discounted, if the effect of the time value of money is material, using pre-tax 
rates that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, an increase in 
the provisions due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. These provisions are 
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Necessary provision for doubtful debts, claims, etc., are made if realisation of money is 
doubtful in the judgement of the management. 

Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will 
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is 
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent 
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized 
because it cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are disclosed separately.

Show cause notices issued by various Government authorities are considered for evaluation 
of contingent liabilities only when converted into demand.
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Contingent assets

Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, the Company discloses a brief description of 
the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and, where practicable, 
an estimate of their financial effect. Contingent assets are disclosed but not recognised in the 
financial statements.

m)	 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-
term balances with original maturity of less than 3 months, highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible into cash, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

n)	 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted 
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or 
future cash receipts or payments.

Bank borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, where 
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity’s cash 
management, bank overdrafts are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for 
the purpose of Cash flow statement.

o)	 Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable 
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. 

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of 
equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity 
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, 
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently 
for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares 
are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.

3.1	 Standards (including amendments) issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing 
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.
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 As at 
March 

31, 2020

As at 
March 

31, 2019
5 Capital Work in Progress

Capital work in progress  -  58.79 
 -  58.79 

6 Non-current assets - Financial Assets: Investments
Investments in Equity shares in Others FVTOCI
Trade Unquoted
3,025,300 Equity Shares (As at March 31, 2019 3,025,300) of Rs.10 
each fully paid up in IG3 Infra Ltd (Formerly known as Indian Green Grid 
Group Ltd)

 311.30 310.09

Investments in Mutual Funds FVTPL
Trade Quoted
Nil units (As at March 31, 2019 4,00,000 units ) in Axis Bank Hybrid 
Series 27 Growth Fund

 -  493.05 

 311.30  803.14 
Total non-current investments
Aggregate amount of quoted investments  -  493.05 
Aggregate market value of quoted investments  -  493.05 
Aggregate cost of unquoted investments  302.53  302.53 
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments  -  - 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

7 Other non-current financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Land Lease Deposit  7.50  6.98 
Security deposit with electricity and other departments  61.76  76.55 
Loans to staff  1.23  2.22 
Lease Prepayments  841.51  853.75 
Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity  3,580.00  100.00 

 4,492.00  1,039.50 
8 Income Tax Assets (Net)

(Unsecured, considered good)
	 Advance Income Tax (net of provisions) 75.82 74.64

 75.82  74.64 
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 As at 
March 

31, 2020

As at 
March 

31, 2019
9 Other Non Current Assets

(Unsecured, considered good)
 Capital Advance  17.20  192.04 

 17.20  192.04 
10 Current assets - Financial Assets: Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good 190.67 208.56
 190.67  208.56 

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  -  - 
 190.67  208.56 

11 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with Banks
	 In Current Account  351.66  54.90 
	 In Deposit Account (maturing within 3 months)  350.00  100.00 
Cash- on- Hand  0.72  0.43 

 702.38  155.33 
12 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

In fixed deposits (maturing after 3 months within 12 months from end of 
the reporting date)

 1,825.00  4,200.00 

In earmarked bank accounts
	 Unpaid Dividend Account  17.53  18.13 

 1,842.53  4,218.13 
13 Other financial assets

(Unsecured, considered good)
	 Interest Accrued but not Due on Deposits 145.64 100.2

 145.64  100.20 
14 Other current assets

(Unsecured, considered good)
	 Advances to Suppliers 21.71 6.47
	 Advances to Employees 0.27 0.67
	 Prepaid Expenses 27.25 42.75
	 Others 15.88 14.41

 65.11 64.30

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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 As at 
March 

31, 2020

As at 
March 

31, 2019
15 Equity Share Capital

Authorised Share Capital
5,000,000 (March 31, 2019 : 5,000,000) Equity shares of 10 each  500.00  500.00 

 500.00  500.00 
Issued, Subscribed and paid up Share Capital
4,000,007 (March 31, 2019: 4,000,007 ) Equity shares of 10 each  400.00  400.00 

 400.00  400.00 
Note:

(a)	 Reconciliation of number of equity shares subscribed
	 Balance as at the beginning of the year 4,000,007 4,000,007 
		  Add: Issued during the year  -  - 
	 Balance at the end of the year 4,000,007 4,000,007 
(b)	 There is no movement in the number of equity shares during the year and in the previous 

year.
(c)	 Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of equity shares issued by the Company

1.	 The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. 
Each holder of Equity shares is entitled to one vote per share rank pari-passu in all 
respects including voting rights and entitlement to dividend.

2.	 The board of directors at its meeting held on June 29, 2020 has recommended for 
the dividend of INR 1.20/- per equity share held (Previous year INR 1.50 per equity 
share held) at 12% (previous year 15%) on Equity shares.The recommeded dividend 
is subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company in the ensuing 29th Annual 
General Meeting of the company.

3.	 In the event of liquidation, shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets 
of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be 
proportionate to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder.

(d)	 Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total share capital

Name of the share holder
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

No of shares % of Holding No of shares % of Holding

Electronics Corporation of Tamil Nadu Ltd  1,040,006 26.00%  1,040,006 26.00%

Stur Technologies Pvt Ltd  450,000 11.25%  450,000 11.25%

Southern Projects Management Pvt Ltd  254,371 6.36%  254,371 6.36%

Shanmugam Thiagarajan  369,483 9.24% 0 0.00%

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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 As at 
March 

31, 2020

As at 
March 

31, 2019
16 Other Equity

General Reserve  2,912.21  2,912.21 
Retained earnings  5,187.22  4,174.62 
Other Reserves - Capital Subsidy  25.75  25.75 
Actuarial movement through Other Comprehensive Income  3.69  3.09 
Reserve for equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income  5.62  5.48 

 8,134.49  7,121.15 
a)	 General Reserve
		  Balance at the beginning of the year  2,912.21  2,912.21 
		  Balance at the end of the year  2,912.21  2,912.21 
The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for 
appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of 
equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general 
reseve will not be reclassified subsequently to Statement of Profit or Loss.
b)	 Retained earnings
	 Balance at the beginning of the year  4,174.62  3,405.77 
		  Net profit for the year  1,084.93  841.18 
		  Dividends Paid  (60.00)  (60.00)
		  Taxes on Dividends Paid  (12.33)  (12.33)
	 Balance at the end of the year  5,187.22  4,174.62 
Retained earnings represents the Company’s undistributed earnings after taxes. 

The Board has recommended on June 29, 2020, a dividend of Rs.1.20 per share (12%) subject to 
the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing 29th Annual General Meeting.
c)	 Other Reserves - Capital Subsidy
		  Balance at the beginning of the year  25.75  25.75 
		  Balance at the end of the year  25.75  25.75 
As per the provisions of G.O.M.S.No.149 Industries dated April 01,1991 the company was granted 
a Capital Subsidy in the year 1995 of Rs.25.75 Lakhs. Items included in the reseve will not be 
reclassified subsequently to Statement of Profit or Loss.
d)	 Actuarial movement through Other Comprehensive Income
	 Balance at the beginning of the year  3.09  2.40 
		  Additions during the year  0.60  0.69 
	 Balance at the end of the year  3.69  3.09 

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)



125

 As at 
March 

31, 2020

As at 
March 

31, 2019
e)	 Reserve for equity instruments through Other Comprehensive 

Income
	 Balance at the beginning of the year  5.48  29.71 
		  Effect of measuring investments at fair value  0.14  (24.23)
	 Balance at the end of the year  5.62  5.48 
This reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity 
instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, net of amounts 
reclassified to retained earnings when those assets have been disposed off.

17 Other financial liabilities
Non Cancellable Compensation Deposits  906.98  910.04 
Token Deposit  9.01  6.41 
Unamortised Interest income  132.20  179.75 

 1,048.19  1,096.20 
18 Provisions (Non -current)

Provision for Employee Benefits
	 Compensated absences (Refer Note 40)  8.37  5.16 

 8.37  5.16 
19 Deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset) - Net

Deferred Tax Liability
On Fixed Assets  9.18  38.23 
Deferred Tax created on OCI Items  2.21  3.27 

 11.39  41.50 
Deferred Tax Asset
On expenses allowable for tax on payment basis  5.43  5.23 
Amortisation of Land Registration Charges  13.22  13.35 

 18.65  18.58 
Net deferred tax (Assets) / liability  (7.26)  22.92 

20 Borrowings (Unsecured)
Loans and advances from related parties*

	 Stur Technologies Private Ltd  426.34  426.34 

 426.34  426.34 
* repayable on demand

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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 As at 
March 

31, 2020

As at 
March 

31, 2019
21 Trade Payables

Trade Payables  6.25  8.06 

Total Outstanding due of micro enterprises and small enterprises  19.90  12.70 

Total Outstanding due of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 26.16  20.76 
Refer to Note 34 for dues to enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 which is on the basis of such parties having been identified by the 
management and relied upon by the auditors.

22 Other financial liabilities (other than those specified above)
Cancellable Compensation Deposit  175.74  295.52 

Compensation Deposit-maturing in 1 year (Non Cancellable)  230.51  4.80 

Unpaid Dividend  17.53  18.13 

Interest on disputed dividend (net)  1.46  1.46 

Advance from customers  12.43  25.00 

Security Deposit  8.44  10.00 

 446.11  354.91 
23 Provisions (Current)

Provision for employee benefits

	 Compensated absences (Refer Note 40)  0.94  0.76 

 0.94  0.76 
24 Other current liabilities

Statutory dues payable  29.86  17.39 

Employee benefits payable  14.05  7.40 

Gratuity payable (Refer Note 40)  3.95  4.16 

 47.86  28.95 

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020

For the year 
ended  

March 31, 2019
25 Revenue from operations

 Sale of Services 

	 Compensation Income  1,952.75  1,738.54 

	 Other operating revenues  450.94  365.91 

 2,403.69  2,104.45 
26 Other income

Interest Income  496.68  376.32 

Other Non-Operating Income  11.46  67.92 

 508.14  444.24 
(i)	 Interest Income comprises of

	 On Deposits  492.17  374.04 

	 On Loans to Employees  3.12  0.14 

	 On Income Tax Refund  1.39  2.14 

 496.68  376.32 

(ii)	 Other Non-Operating Income comprises of

	 Profit on sale of Fixed Assets  0.96  - 

	 Income on redemption of mutual fund  8.31  - 

	 Income on investments carried at fair value through 
profit & loss

 -  32.84 

	 Other Receipts  2.18  35.08 

 11.46  67.92 
27 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and Wages  104.53  106.20 

Contributions to provident and other funds  8.50  10.57 

Staff welfare expenses  4.81  5.03 

 117.83  121.80 
28 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 387.73 331.77

 387.73  331.77 

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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29 Other expenses
Electricity  330.38  263.66 
Diesel  9.67  58.94 
Water  24.39  25.68 
Rent including lease rentals  12.24  12.24 
Repairs and maintenance
	 Buildings  158.79  134.52 
	 Machinery  28.77  21.52 
	 Others  103.34  116.64 
Insurance  10.25  10.39 
Rates and taxes  45.97  45.27 
Communication expenses  3.33  4.26 
Travelling and conveyance  26.65  23.60 
Printing and stationery  3.71  5.30 
Business promotion expenses  6.91  15.18 
Legal and professional charges  23.85  21.30 
Payments to auditors (refer note ‘a’ below)  6.00  6.02 
Sitting fees  7.35  7.84 
Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility  
(refer note ‘b’ below)

 24.05  22.79 

Brokerage  20.25  55.54 
Miscellaneous Expenses  6.63  4.40 
Loss on sale of fixed assets  -  3.46 
Provision for bad debts  -  0.46 

 852.52  859.01 
 (a) Payments to auditors 
	 For Statutory Audit  4.00  4.00 
	 For Tax Audit  1.00  1.00 
	 For Limited Review  1.00  1.02 

 6.00  6.02 
(b) Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility
Gross amount required to be spent on Corporate Social 
Responsibility during the year

 24.05  22.79 

Amount spent during the year on

(i) Construction and/ or acquisition of any asset  -  - 
(ii) Other purposes [other than (i) above)]  24.05  22.79 

 24.05  22.79 

Amount unspent during the year Nil Nil 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020

For the year 
ended  

March 31, 2019

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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30 Finance costs
Implicit interest on security deposits  86.64  69.82 

 86.64  69.82 
31 Income tax expense

(a)	 Income tax expense
	 Current tax
		  Current tax on profits for the year  411.10  355.00 
	 Total current tax expense  411.10  355.00 

	 Deferred tax
		  Deferred tax adjustments  (28.92)  (29.89)
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit)  (28.92)  (29.89)

Income tax expense  382.18  325.11 

(b)	 Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit 
for the year is as under: 

	 Profit before tax  1,467.11  1,166.29 
	 Income tax expense calculated 25.17%  

(Previous Year - 29.12%) (Refer Note 31 (c) below)
 369.27  339.62 

	 Tax Effect on non-deductible expenses (Net)  4.23  (14.51)
	 Tax effect on mutual fund redempton  8.68  - 
	 Tax Expense as per Statement of Profit and Loss  382.18  325.11 
(c)	 The company elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. 
Accordingly, the Company has recognized provision for Income tax for the year ended March 
31, 2020 and re-measured its deferred tax assets (Net) based on the rate prescribed in the 
said Ordinance. The full impact of this change has been recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss and other comprehensive income, for the year ended March 31, 2020.

(d)	 Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2020

Deferred tax (liabilities)/ assets in 
relation to:

Opening 
balance

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss

Recognised in Other 
comprehensive 

income
Closing 
balance

Property, plant, and equipment 
and Intangible Assets  (38.23)  29.05  -    (9.18)

Remeasurement of financial 
instruments under Ind AS  (3.27)  -    1.06  (2.21)

Other temporary differences  18.58  (0.13) 0.20  18.65 
 (22.92)  28.92 1.26  7.26 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020

For the year 
ended  

March 31, 2019

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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(e)	 Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2019

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in 
relation to:

Opening 
balance

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss

Recognised 
in Other 

comprehensive 
income

Closing 
balance

Property, plant, and equipment 
and Intangible Assets  (67.86)  29.63  -    (38.23)

Remeasurement of financial 
instruments under Ind AS  (12.94)  9.67  (3.27)

Other temporary differences  18.32  0.26  -    18.58 
 (62.48)  29.89  9.67  (22.92)

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020

For the year 
ended  

March 31, 2019
32 Earnings per share

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company  1,084.93  841.18 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding  4,000,007  4,000,007 
Basic earnings per share (Rs)  27.12  21.03 
Diluted earnings per share (Rs)  27.12  21.03 

33 Expenditure in foreign currency NIL NIL

34 Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) 
Act, 2006 are as under

Particulars Year ended 
March 31,2020

Year ended 
March 31,2019

(a)	 The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the 
year

 6.25  8.06 

(b)	 Delayed payments of principal amount paid beyond the 
appointed date during the year

- -

(c)	 Interest actually paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act - -
(d)	  Normal Interest due and payable during the year, for all 

the delayed payments, as per the agreed terms
- -

(e)	 Total interest accrued during the year and remaining 
unpaid

- -

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been 
identified on the basis of information collected by the management represents the principal amount 
payable to these enterprises. There are no interest due and outstanding as at the reporting date.

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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35 Commitments and contingent liabilities
Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
(i) Income Tax demand
There is a dispute with regard to the treatment of income of the company by the Income Tax 
Department as “Income from House Property”, whereas in the opinion of the Company, the 
income should be treated as “Income from Business”, which has been confirmed by the Income 
Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT).
In respect of Assessment Years 1996-97,1998-99, 2000-01 & 2001-02, the Madras High Court 
has decided the case in favour of the Company. The Department has filed a special leave petition 
with the Supreme Court. And all the cases were dismissed by the Court due to the Tax volume is 
less than Rs. Two crores.
(ii) Lease Rent
In respect of claim made by Electronics Corporation of Tamilnadu Limited (ELCOT) during the 
year 2009-10 for a sum of Rs.956 Lakhs towards difference in the computation of Lease Rent for 
the period from 14.02.1991 to 14.01.1999, the Company prima-facie has reasons that the claim is 
not tenable and hence, no provision is considered necessary.
During the previous year, ELCOT demanded interest on delayed payment of Lease Rent amounting 
to Rs.1,071 Lakhs for the period May 18, 2000 uptil August 8, 2017. The management based on 
it’s assessment and legal advice obtained is confident of the outcome of the matters in it’s favour.

36 Operating Segments
The company is engaged in the business of ‘Developing and maintaining integrated software 
technology parks’ and therefore, has only one reportable segment in accordance with Ind AS 108 
‘Operating Segments’. The Company’s revenue is generated only within India and all operating 
assets are also located only in India. Accordingly, no disclosure relating to geographical location 
is applicable.

37 Leases
(i) The company as a lessee {Refer Note 4(a)}

Amounts recognised in statement of Profit and Loss account

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Interest on Lease Liabilities  -    -   
Variable lease payments  12.24  12.24 

(ii) The company as a lessor
(i) Operating leases relate to the properties owned by the company with lease terms of between 1 
to 5 years, with an option to extend for further period. All operating lease contracts contain market 
review clauses in the event that the lessee exercises its option to renew. The lessee does not 
have an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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(ii) Amounts recognised in statement of Profit and Loss account

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Lease Income for Operating Leases  1,952.75  1,738.54 

(iii) Maturity analysis on lease payments receivable.
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 
operating leases

Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Not later than 1 year  1,725.00  1,577.00 
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years  3,085.00  4,158.00 
Later than 5 years  -    3.00 

38 Financial Instruments
Capital management
The Company’s capital management objective is to maximise the total shareholder return by 
optimising cost of capital through flexible capital structure that supports growth. Further, the 
Company ensures optimal credit risk profile to maintain/enhance credit rating.
For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share 
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.
The following table summarises the capital of the Company:

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Equity  400.00  400.00 
Debt  426.34  426.34 
Cash and cash equivalents  702.38  155.33 
Net debt  (276.04)  271.01 
Net Debt to Equity ratio  (69.01)  67.75 

Fair Value Measurments
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial 
liabilities including their levels in fair value hierarchy.

Categories of Financial Instruments March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Financial assets
a.	 Measured at amortised cost
	 Other non-current financial assets  4,492.00  1,039.50 
	 Trade receivables  190.67  208.56 
	 Cash and cash equivalents  702.38  155.33 
	 Bank balances other than above  1,842.53  4,218.13 
	 Other current financial assets  145.64  100.20 

b.	 Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
	 Investments - Level 1  -    493.05 

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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c.	 Mandatorily measured at fair value through other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
	 Investments - Level 2  311.30  310.09 

Financial Liaibilities
a.	 Measured at amortised cost
	 Borrowings  426.34  426.34 
	 Other non-current financial liabilities  1,048.19  1,096.20 
	 Trade payables  26.16  20.76 
	 Other financial liabilities  446.11  354.91 

Financial risk management objectives						    
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, credit risks, liquidity risks and 
market risks.
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight 
of the risk management framework.
The Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the 
company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adhere to limits. Risk 
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions 
and company’s activities. The company, through its training and management standards and 
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control enviornment in which all 
employees understand their roles and obligations. 
Market risk
Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows 
that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The Company’s activities do 
not have any exposure to such risks.
Foreign currency risk management & Sensitivity Analysis
The Company’s operations do not involve transactions denominated in foreign currencies; 
consequently, exposure to exchange rate fluctuations does not arise. Accordingly, the Company 
does not have any exposure to such risks.
There are no hedged or unhedged foreign currency exposure outstanding as at March 31, 2020 
& March 31, 2019
Interest rate risk management & Sensitivity Analysis
The Company has only interest free short term borrowings and accordingly is not exposed to 
interest rate risk.
Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting 
in financial loss to the Company. The Company is not subject to major credit risk as the majority of 
its trade receivables are covered by means of interest free security deposit taken at the inception 
of the agreement.
Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 
exposure is the total of the carrying amount of balances with banks, short term deposits with 
banks, trade receivables, margin money and other financial assets excluding equity investments. 
(a)	 Trade Receivables
	 Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. The Company has credit 

evaluation policy for each customer and, based on the evaluation, credit limit of each customer 
is defined. Wherever the Company assesses the credit risk as high, the exposure is backed 
by security deposits taken at the time of entering into agreement with the customers.

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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	 The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer. As 
per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade 
receivables using a provision matrix to mitigate the risk of default in payments and makes 
appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for longer period and 
involves higher risk. 

(b)	 Investments, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank Deposits
	 Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalents, deposits with the banks/financial institutions is 

generally low as the said deposits have been made with the banks/financial institutions, who 
have been assigned high credit rating by international and domestic rating agencies.

	 Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved Financial Institutions/Counterparty. 
Investments primarily include investment in units of quoted Mutual Funds,etc. These Mutual 
Funds and Counterparties have low credit risk. 

Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective 
of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available 
for use as per requirements. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and 
mutual funds, which carry minimal mark to market risks. The Company also constantly monitors 
funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintaining financial 
flexibility.
Liquidity tables
The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative 
financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the 
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company 
can be required to pay.

As at March 31, 2020 Due in 3 
months

Due in 3 months 
to 1st year

Due in 1st to 
5th year

Due after 
5th year

Total Carrying 
amount

Borrowings  -    426.34  -    -    426.34 
Trade payables  26.16  -    -    -    26.16 
Cancellable & Non 
Cancellable Deposits  185.79  177.29  1,037.75  53.60  1,454.43 

Other financial liabilities  8.44  31.42  -    -    39.87 
 220.39  208.71  1,037.75  53.60  1,520.45 

As at March 31, 2019 Due in 3 
months

Due in 3 months 
to 1st year

Due in 1st to 
5th year

Due after 
5th year

Total Carrying 
amount

Borrowings  -    426.34  -    -    426.34 
Trade payables  20.76  -    -    -    20.76 
Cancellable & Non 
Cancellable Deposits  73.08  146.21  1,105.31  71.92  1,396.52 

Other financial liabilities  10.00  44.59  -    -    54.59 
 103.84  190.80  1,105.31  71.92  1,471.87 

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are 
not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are 
required):

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Nil Nil

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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39	 Related party disclosure
a)	 List of parties having significant influence

Holding company The Company does not have any holding company
Entity having significant Influence Electronics Corporation of Tamil Nadu Ltd (ELCOT)
Other Enterprises with which 
promoter has significant influence

IG3 Infra Ltd 
Stur Technologies Pvt Ltd 

Key management personnel
Unnamalai Thiagarajan Managing Director
E Kamakshi Chief Financial Officer 
T.Joswa Johnson Company Secretary 

b)	 Transactions during the year
S. 
No Nature of transactions Year ended 

March 31, 2020
Year ended 

March 31, 2019
1 Electronics Corporation of Tamil Nadu Ltd (ELCOT)

	 Lease Rent  12.24  12.24 
	 Sitting Fees  0.91  0.91 

2 Unnamalai Thiagarajan
	 Remuneration  14.00  14.00 

3 E Kamakshi 
	 Remuneration  14.74  13.01 
	 Contribution to PF and Other Funds  1.22  1.11 

4 T. Joswa Johnson
	 Remuneration  7.75  5.46 
	 Contribution to PF and Other Funds  0.58  0.44 

c)	 Balances outstanding at the end of the year
S. 
No Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2020
Year ended 

March 31, 2019
1 Electronics Corporation of Tamil Nadu Ltd (ELCOT)

	 Deposit given for leasehold land  849.01  860.73 
2 Stur Technologies Pvt Ltd

	 Unsecured Loans  426.34  426.34 
	 Interest on disputed dividend  1.46  1.46 

d)	 Investment in Equity shares
S. 
No Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2020
Year ended 

March 31, 2019
1 IG3 Infra Ltd  

(Formerly Indian Green Grid Group Ltd)  311.30  310.39 

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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40	 Retirement benefit plans
	 Defined contribution plans

 	 The total expense recognised in profit or loss of Rs.8.50 lakhs (for the year ended March 31, 2019: 
Rs. 10.57 lakhs) represents contribution paid to these plans by the Company at rates specified in 
the rules of the plan.

	 Defined benefit plans
	 In respect of Gratuity plan and Compensated absences plan, the most recent actuarial valuation of 

the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as on March 
31, 2020. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost 
and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit cost method. The following table 
sets forth the status of the Gratuity Plan & Compensated absences plan of the Company and the 
amount recognised in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company provides 
the gratuity benefit through annual contributions to insurer managed funds.

	 These plan typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate 
risk, demographic risk and salary risk.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated 
using a discount rate determined by reference to the market yields on 
government bonds denominated in Indian Rupees. If the actual return 
on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. 
However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the 
plan’s debt investments.

Demographic Risk The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions 
in valuation of the liability. The Group is exposed to the risk of actual 
experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.

Salary Escalation risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by 
reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase 
in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

	 In respect of the plan in India, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 2019 by Mr.Srinivasan 
Nagasubramanian, Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined 
benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using 
the projected unit credit method.

	 No other post-retirement benefits are provided to these employees.

	 (a) Gratuity

	 Gratuity is payable as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. In terms of the same, gratuity is computed 
by multiplying last drawn salary (basic salary including dearness Allowance if any) by completed 
years of continuous service with part thereof in excess of six months and again by 15/26. The 
Act provides for a vesting period of 5 years for withdrawal and retirement and a monetary ceiling 
on gratuity payable to an employee on separation, as may be prescribed under the Payment of 
Gratuity Act, 1972, from time to time. However, in cases where an enterprise has more favourable 
terms in this regard the same has been adopted.

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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	 The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were 
as follows:
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Mortality Table Indian Assured Lives 

(2006-08) Ultimate
Indian Assured Lives 
(2006-08) Ultimate

Discount Rate 6.83% p.a. 7.75% p.a. 
Rate of increase in compensation level 10.00% p.a. 12.00% p.a. 
Employee Attrition rate 10.00% p.a. 9.50% p.a. 
Rate of Return on Plan Assets 6.83% p.a. 7.75% p.a. 

	 The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, 
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment 
market.
Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respect 
of these Gratuity plan is as follows: March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Current service cost  1.50  1.86 
Net interest expense  1.33  1.74 
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net 
interest expense)  (1.09)  (1.27)

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in 
profit or loss  1.74  2.33 

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability 
comprising: March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

	 Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised during the period  (0.79)  (0.96)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in 
other comprehensive income  (0.79)  (0.96)

(i)	 The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 
‘employee benefits expense’ in profit or loss.				  

(ii)	 The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive 
income.

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the 
Company’s obligation in respect of its Gratuity plan is as 
follows:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Present value of defined benefit obligation  20.90  20.15 
Fair value of plan assets  (16.95)  (15.99)
Net liability/ (asset) arising from defined benefit obligation  3.95  4.16 
Funded  3.95  4.16 

 3.95  5.85 
The above provisions are reflected under 'Other current liabilities- gratuity payable' (Long and 
short-term provisions) [Refer note 18 and 23]. 

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
in the current year were as follows: March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Opening defined benefit obligation  20.15  27.94 
Current service cost  1.50  1.86 
Interest cost  1.33 1.74
Actuarial (gains)/losses  (0.76)  (0.68)
Benefits paid  (1.32)  (10.71)
Closing defined benefit obligation  20.90  20.15 

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current 
year were as follows: March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Opening fair value of plan assets  15.99  18.31 
Adjustments to the opening balance  -  - 
Return on plan assets  1.09  1.27 
Contributions  1.16  6.85 
Benefits paid  (1.32)  (10.72)
Actuarial gains/(loss)  0.03  0.28 
Closing fair value of plan assets  16.95  15.99 

	 Sensitivity Analysis							     

	 Sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined 
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one 
another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above 
sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using 
the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied 
in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

	 There was no change in the methods of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from 
prior years.

	 Maturity profile of benefit payments

Incidence of Payment March 31, 2020
By the end of First Year  1,15,858 
Between Year 1 and Year 2  1,12,701 
Between Year 2 and Year 3  1,09,725 
Between Year 3 and Year 4  1,06,920 
Between Year 4 and Year 5  65,541 
Between Year 5 and Year 10  7,70,753 

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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	 (b) Compensated absences

	 The compensated absences scheme is a final salary defined benefit plan, that provides for a 
lumpsum payment at the time of separation; based on scheme rules the benefits are calculated on 
the basis of last drawn salary and the leave count at the time of separation and paid as lumpsum.

	 The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were 
as follows:

Particulars March 31, 
2020

March 31, 
2019

Mortality Table
Indian Assured 
Lives (2006-08) 

Ultimate

Indian Assured 
Lives (2006-08) 

Ultimate
Discount Rate 6.83% p.a. 7.75% p.a.
Rate of salary escalation 10.00% p.a. 12.00% p.a. 
Employee Attrition rate 10.00% p.a. 9.50% p.a. 

	 The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, 
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment 
market.

Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respect 
of these defined benefit plans are as follows: March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Current service cost  3.68  3.26 
Net interest expense  0.26  0.25 
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised during the period  3.25  (0.12)
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net 
interest expense)  -  - 

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in 
profit or loss 7.19 3.39

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the 
Company’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is 
as follows:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Present value of defined benefit obligation  9.31  5.57 
Fair value of plan assets  -  - 
Net liability/ (asset) arising from defined benefit obligation  9.31  5.57 
Unfunded  9.31  5.57 
The above provisions are reflected under 'Provision for employee benefits- Compensated 
Absences (Long and short-term provisions) [Refer note 17 and 22]. 

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
in the current year were as follows: March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Opening defined benefit obligation  5.57  4.27 
Current service cost  3.68  3.26 
Interest cost  0.26 0.25
Actuarial (gains)/losses  3.25  (0.12)
Benefits paid  (3.45)  (2.09)
Closing defined benefit obligation  9.31  5.57 
As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined 
benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets has not been presented.

	 Sensitivity Analysis

	 Sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined 
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one 
another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above 
sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using 
the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied 
in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

	 There was no change in the methods of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from 
prior years.

41	 The World Health Organization announced a global health emergency because of a new strain 
of coronavirus (“COVID-19”) and classified its outbreak as a pandemic on March 11, 2020. On 
March 24, 2020, the Indian government announced a strict 21-day lockdown across the country to 
contain the spread of the virus, which has been further extended till June 30, 2020 in Tamilnadu. 
This pandemic and response thereon are creating disruption in global supply chain and adversely 
impacting most of the industries which has resulted in global slowdown.

	 The management has made a detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the next year and 
recoverability and carrying value of the assets comprising of property plant and equipment, trade 
receivables and other financial and non-financial assets . Based on the current indicators of future 
economic conditions, the company expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets. The 
situation is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty around the extent and timing of the 
potential future impact of COVID-19 pandemic which may be different from that estimated as at the 
date of approval of these financial statements. 

42	 The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on June 29,2020

43	 The figures for the previous year have been reclassified/regrouped wherever necessary for better 
understanding and comparability.

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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